Public Document Pack

HEALTH
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
PANEL

Thursday, 20th March, 2014
at 6.00 pm

PLEASE NOTE TIME OF MEETING

Conference Room 3 - Civic Centre

This meeting is open to the public
Members

Councillor Stevens (Chair)
Councillor Claisse (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Cunio

Councillor Laming

Councillor Parnell

Councillor Spicer

Contacts

Ed Grimshaw

Democratic Support Officer

Tel: 023 8083 2390

Email: ed.grimshaw@southampton.gov.uk

Dorota Goble

Improvement Manager

Tel: 023 8083 3317

Email: dorota.goble@southampton.gov.uk




PUBLIC INFORMATION

Role of Health Overview Scrutiny Panel (Terms of Reference)

The Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel will have 6 scheduled meetings per year
with additional meetings organised as required.

e To discharge all responsibilities
of the Council for health overview
and scrutiny, whether as a
statutory duty or through the
exercise of a power, including
subject to formal guidance being
issued from the Department of
health, the referral of issues to
the Secretary of State.

e To undertake the scrutiny of
Social Care issues in the City
unless they are forward plan
items. In such circumstances
members of the halth Overview
and Scrutiny Panel will be invited
to the relevant Overview and
Scrutiny Management Committee
meeting where they are
discussed.

e To develop and agree the annual
health and social care scrutiny
work programme.

e To scrutinise the development
and implementation of the Joint
Strategic Needs Assessment and
Health and Wellbeing Strategy
developed by the Health and
Wellbeing Board.

Public Representations

At the discretion of the Chair, members
of the public may address the meeting
about any report on the agenda for the
meeting in which they have a relevant
interest

Smoking policy — the Council operates
a no-smoking policy in all civic buildings.

e Torespond to proposals and
consultations from NHS bodies in
respect of substantial variations in
service provision and any other
major health consultation exercises.

e Liaise with the Southampton LINk
and its successor body
“Healthwatch” and to respond to any
matters brought to the attention of
overview and scrutiny by the
Southampton LINk and its
successor body “Healthwatch”

e Provide a vehicle for the City
Council's Overview & Scrutiny
Management Committee to refer
recommendations arising from panel
enquiries relating to the City’s
health, care and well-being to
Southampton’s LINk and its
successor body “Healthwatch” for
further monitoring.

e To consider Councillor Calls for
Action for health and social care
matters.

e To provide the membership of any
joint committee established to
respond to formal consultations by
an NHS body on an issue which
impacts the residents of more than
one overview and scrutiny
committee area.

Mobile Telephones — please turn off your
mobile telephone whilst in the meeting.

Dates of Meetings: Municipal Year
2013/14

2013 2014
23 May 2013 31 January 2014
18 July 20 March

19 September 2 April

21 November 17 April

15 May




Council’s Priorities:

e Economic: Promoting e Environmental: Encouraging new
Southampton and attracting house building and improving
investment; raising ambitions and existing homes; making the city
improving outcomes for children more attractive and sustainable
and young people. e One Council: Developing an

e Social: Improving health and engaged, skilled and motivated
keeping people safe; helping workforce; implementing better
individuals and communities to ways of working to manage reduced
work together and help budgets and increased demand.
themselves.

CONDUCT OF MEETING

Terms of Reference Business to be discussed

Only those items listed on the attached
Details above agenda may be considered at this
The general role and terms of reference  meeting.
for the Overview and Scrutiny Rules of Procedure

Management Committee, together with  The meeting is governed by the Council
those for all Scrutiny Panels, are set out Procedure Rules as set out in Part 4 of the

in Part 2 (Article 6) of the Council’s Constitution.

Constitution, and their particular roles Quorum

are set out in Part 4 (Overview and The minimum number of appointed
Scrutiny Procedure Rules of the Members required to be in attendance to
Constitution. hold the meeting is 3.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Members are required to disclose, in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct,
both the existence and nature of any “Disclosable Pecuniary Interest” or “Other
Interest” they may have in relation to matters for consideration on this Agenda.

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS

A Member must regard himself or herself as having a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest
in any matter that they or their spouse, partner, a person they are living with as
husband or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they were a civil partner
in relation to:

(i) Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain.
(ii) Sponsorship:

Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from Southampton City
Council) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any expense incurred by
you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your election expenses. This includes any
payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and
Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.

(iii) Any contract which is made between you / your spouse etc (or a body in which the you /
your spouse etc has a beneficial interest) and Southampton City Council under which goods
or services are to be provided or works are to be executed, and which has not been fully
discharged.

(iv) Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of Southampton.



(v) Any license (held alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of Southampton
for a month or longer.

(vi) Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) the landlord is Southampton City Council and the
tenant is a body in which you / your spouse etc has a beneficial interests.

(vii) Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where that body (to your knowledge) has a
place of business or land in the area of Southampton, and either:

a) the total nominal value for the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the
total issued share capital of that body, or

b) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal value of
the shares of any one class in which you / your spouse etc has a beneficial interest
that exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.

Other Interests

A Member must regard himself or herself as having an, ‘Other Interest’ in any membership of,
or occupation of a position of general control or management in:

Any body to which they have been appointed or nominated by Southampton City Council
Any public authority or body exercising functions of a public nature
Any body directed to charitable purposes
Any body whose principal purpose includes the influence of public opinion or policy
Principles of Decision Making
All decisions of the Council will be made in accordance with the following principles:-
e proportionality (i.e. the action must be proportionate to the desired outcome);
e due consultation and the taking of professional advice from officers;
e respect for human rights;
e a presumption in favour of openness, accountability and transparency;
e setting out what options have been considered,;
e setting out reasons for the decision; and
e clarity of aims and desired outcomes.
In exercising discretion, the decision maker must:

¢ understand the law that regulates the decision making power and gives effect to it.
The decision-maker must direct itself properly in law;

o take into account all relevant matters (those matters which the law requires the
authority as a matter of legal obligation to take into account);

e |eave out of account irrelevant considerations;
e act for a proper purpose, exercising its powers for the public good,;

¢ not reach a decision which no authority acting reasonably could reach, (also known as
the “rationality” or “taking leave of your senses” principle);

o comply with the rule that local government finance is to be conducted on an annual
basis. Save to the extent authorised by Parliament, ‘live now, pay later’ and forward
funding are unlawful; and

e act with procedural propriety in accordance with the rules of fairness.



Agendas and papers are now available via the City Council’s website

1 APOLOGIES AND CHANGES IN MEMBERSHIP (IF ANY)

To note any changes in membership of the Panel made in accordance with Council
Procedure Rule 4.3.

2 DISCLOSURE OF PERSONAL AND PECUNIARY INTERESTS

In accordance with the Localism Act 2011, and the Council’'s Code of Conduct,
Members to disclose any personal or pecuniary interests in any matter included on the
agenda for this meeting.

NOTE: Members are reminded that, where applicable, they must complete the
appropriate form recording details of any such interests and hand it to the Democratic
Support Officer.

3 DECLARATIONS OF SCRUTINY INTEREST

Members are invited to declare any prior participation in any decision taken by a
Committee, Sub-Committee, or Panel of the Council on the agenda and being
scrutinised at this meeting.

4 DECLARATION OF PARTY POLITICAL WHIP

Members are invited to declare the application of any party political whip on any matter
on the agenda and being scrutinised at this meeting.

5 STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIR

6 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (INCLUDING MATTERS ARISING)

To approve and sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 20"
February 2014 and to deal with any matters arising, attached.

7 INQUIRY MEETING 2: INQUIRY MEETING 2 - ACCOMMODATION AND SUPPORT
SERVICES THROUGH THE VOLUNTARY SECTOR AND ACCESS TO AND
DISCHARGE FROM HEALTH SERVICES

Report of the Assistant Chief Executive introducing the speakers that will address the
Inquiry in relation to the provision of key services for single homeless people, attached.

Wednesday, 12 March 2014 HEAD OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 6

SOUTHAMPTON CITY COUNCIL
HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 20 FEBRUARY 2014

Present:

Councillors Stevens (Chair), Claisse (Vice-Chair), Cunio, Laming, Parnell
and Spicer

Also in Attendance Councillor Payne — Cabinet Member for Housing and Sustainability

43.

44.

Councillor Shields — Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social Care
Councillor Bogle

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (INCLUDING MATTERS ARISING)

RESOLVED: that the minutes for the Panel meeting on 23" January 2014 be approved
and signed as a correct record.

INQUIRY INTO THE IMPACT OF HOUSING AND HOMELESSNESS ON THE

HEALTH OF SINGLE PEOPLE: MEETING ONE - SETTING THE SCENE

The Panel considered the report of the Assistant Chief Executive introducing the
concepts and the speakers setting the context for the Inquiry.

The Panel received presentations from the South East Regional Manager of Homeless
Link, the Council's Housing Needs Manager, the Commissioner for Supporting People
and Adult Care Services, and a Consultant Nurse from Homeless Healthcare Team.

On hearing the presentation from Homeless Link the Panel noted:

the key principles of the organisation;
the organisations view of the current national context for homelessness and
health detailing:
o the current statistics, trends and numbers of homeless;
how the Health Needs Audit tool was an important in identifying what was
needed to address issues relating to health matters;
the health inequality trends of the Homeless. It was noted that:
o 80% of homeless people have more than one physical health need;
o 70% have at least one mental health problem;
o rough sleepers are more than 200 times more likely to have tuberculosis;
o the average age of death for a homeless individual was between 43-47;
and
o 50-75% of rough sleepers have mental disorder such as anxiety,
depression and psychosis.
the wider costs to individuals, the National Health Service and society as a
whole;
barriers to the homeless accessing the right services including:
o difficulties with registering for medical support;
o a lack of integration of services to support individuals; and
o the tendency for the homeless fall beneath treatment thresholds because
their needs are too complex; and
the Southampton perspective the Panel noted that;
o Southampton’s approach to homelessness was seen as a national good
example;

-21 -



o Southampton was one of the first areas to carry out the Homeless Health
Audit;
o the City has a Homeless Health team - A multi-disciplinary primary care
team providing care to homeless people in Southampton;
o the services available to homeless in Southampton including:
» Southampton Street Intensive and Resettlement Service —
including an in house needle exchange;
» St James - a home for vulnerable older people with a history of
homelessness; and
» Two Saints - Introduction of Psychologically Informed
Environments into all their hostels and
» The Breathing Spaces Project.

The Panel received introductions to the Council’s policy perspective on the provision of
services to combat homelessness and improvement of health services from the Cabinet
Members for Housing and Sustainability and Health and Adult Social Care.

The Panel also considered further evidence relating to the local situation from the City
Council’'s Housing Needs Manager, the Commissioner for Supporting People and Adult
Social Care Services and a Consultant Nurse from the Homeless Healthcare Team
including:-

an overview of the City’s housing stock including the level of income required for
1 and 2 bedroom starter home compared with the median gross income within
the City,
the numbers of Households of the Council’s waiting list and the high demand for
one bedroom properties;
that City’s statutory obligations for certain types of individuals;
the potential impact of welfare reform.
statistics relating to:

o homeless applications by priority need;

o rough sleeping in Southampton; and

o triggers causing rough sleeping in Southampton.
measures taken to tackle rough sleeping in Southampton;
the various levels of help that the supporting people services are able to supply;
the emphasis on prevention and enablement for potential services users aiming
to resolve issues before they declined any further;
how the Homeless Health Care Team aims to support individuals;
the health trends and concerns affecting by homelessness and how the local
services were structured to tackle these.

RESOLVED that the presentations made by Homeless Link, the Council’s Housing
Needs Manager, the Commissioner for Supporting People and Adult Care Services,
and a Consultant Nurse from Homeless Healthcare Team, be noted and the information
provided be entered into the Inquiry’s file of evidence.

-22 -



Agenda ltem 7

DECISION-MAKER: HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL

SUBJECT: INQUIRY MEETING 2 - ACCOMMODATION AND
SUPPORT SERVICES THROUGH THE VOLUNTARY
SECTOR AND ACCESS TO AND DISCHARGE FROM
HEALTH SERVICES

DATE OF DECISION: 20 FEBRUARY 2014
REPORT OF: ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE
CONTACT DETAILS
AUTHOR: Name: Dorota Goble Tel: 023 8083 3317
E-mail:  dorota.goble@southampton.gov.uk
Director Name: Suki Sitaram Tel: | 023 8083 2060

E-mail:  suki.sitaram@southampton.gov.uk
STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY
None
BRIEF SUMMARY

This report provides details for the second meeting of the Health Overview and
Scrutiny Panel (HOSP) Inquiry examining the impact of housing and homelessness
on the health of single people.

The issues will be separated into two sections:

Part A will focus on homelessness accommodation and support services, offered by
the voluntary sector. Services represented will include:

For adults:
e Society of Saint James - Guy Malcolm, Operations Director
e Two Saints - Jon Bramley, Business Development Manager
For young people:
e No Limits — Alison Ward, Project Manager
e Chapter 1 — Tina Hill, Service manager
PART B will focus on access to and discharge from health services.
Services represented will include:

e Homeless Healthcare Team - Pam Campbell, Consultant Nurse
Homelessness and Health Inequalities, Solent Healthcare

e Substance misuse — Jackie Hall, SCC Integrated Commissioning Unit,
Commissioner

¢ Mental Health Services — Dr Shanaya Rathod, Southern Health
e Adult safeguarding — John Callaway, SCC, Social Worker

RECOMMENDATIONS:
(1) The Panel is recommended to consider the information provided by
presentations and use this, alongside the appendices, as evidence in
the inquiry.

Version Number: 1



REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS

1. To enable the Panel to consider the evidence in order to agree findings and
recommendations at the end of the inquiry process.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

2 Not to proceed with inquiry. This option was rejected as the Panel have
agreed to undertake the inquiry given the current high demand for single
accommodation alongside the fact that single homeless people are less
likely to be in priority need. It is widely known that homelessness, especially
rough sleeping, has significant and negative consequences for an
individual's health. Many studies have found strong correlations between
homelessness and a multiplicity, and increased severity, of both physical and
mental health conditions.

3 However, despite this increased morbidity, homeless people consistently
miss out on the healthcare they need. As a result, health problems are left
untreated and health deteriorates. When homeless people do access health
services, they are likely to do so in an unplanned way (for example through
accident and emergency) and to be in a state of chronic ill health. This
results in longer stays in hospital and multiple readmissions, and has clear
cost implications. The Inquiry aims to consider the impact and barriers to
single homelessness people accessing healthcare and other services and
make recommendations that aim to reduce blockages in the system and
prevent future increasing demand on services, within existing cost
constraints.

DETAIL (Including consultation carried out)

4, Following discussions with services some minor modification have been made
to the Inquiry plan for the third meeting to focus on access to and ensuring
long term accommodation, and the fourth meeting tackling complex health
and other needs associated with homelessness. An amended Inquiry Plan is
attached at Appendix 1.

5. The purpose of the Inquiry is to consider the impact of housing and
homelessness on the health of single people, a significant number of whom
have complex needs, and live unsettled and transient lifestyles, and to
examine the difficulties that their everyday life presents to deliver a
preventative and planned approach to improve their health and well being
and access to a settled and decent home.

6. The second meeting will be split into two sections.

Part A of the Inquiry aims to consider the issues and barriers for
accommodation and support based service providers in the voluntary sector.
Part B will consider access to and discharge from relevant health services.

Version Number: 2



10.

11.

12.

PART A: ACCOMMODATION AND SUPPORT BASED SERVICE
PROVIDERS IN THE VOLUNTARY SECTOR

Society of St James - Guy Malcolm, Operations Director, will highlight the
services, issues and barriers that their clients experience. The Society of St
James is a charity offering homeless and drug and alcohol dependency
services in Southampton. An overview of their services and issues their
clients experience is attached at Appendix 2. Further information on the
services they offer is also available at www.ssj.org.uk

Two Saints’ work in Southampton is with Single Homeless People. They
have three main services, all of which work at the front end of the
homelessness pathway. Jon Bramley, Business Development Manager, will
talk about the services and issues for their single homeless clients. An
overview of the Two Saints services and issues is attached at Appendix 3.
Further information on the service Two Saints offer is also available at
www.twosaints.org.uk

No Limits is an information and advice service for young people up to the
age of 26. No Limits are a member of Youth Access. Youth Access is the
national membership organisation for young people's information, advice,
counselling and support services (YIACS). Alison Ward, Project Manager, will
highlight the services and issues for young homeless people. An overview of
No Limit services, client profile, case studies and key issues is attached at
Appendix 4. Further information on No Limits services is available at
www.nolimitshelp.org.uk

Chapter 1 Young People’s Supported Housing Service (Kingsley
House) provides supported housing to 16-25 year olds who have been
homeless or at risk of homelessness. The service offers a range of
accommodation to best suit the skills & circumstances of the individual. Tina
Hill, Service Manager, will outline the services and issues for Chapter 1
clients. An overview of the Chapter 1 services is attached at Appendix 5.
Further information on No Limits services is available at
http://www.chapteri.org.uk/kingsley-house--southampton

PART B: ACCESS TO AND DISCHARGE FROM RELEVANT HEALTH
SERVICES.

The Homeless Healthcare Team provide GP and health support from the
Two Saints Cranbury Day Centre, along with outreach work at other provider
services. Pam Campbell - Consultant Nurse Homelessness and Health
Inequalities, Solent Healthcare, will give the panel more detailed information
on the services and issues their clients present. An overview of the service
and issues for the Homeless Healthcare Team are attached at Appendix 6.

Southampton’s current Substance Misuse Services have been
incrementally developed under the strategic direction of the Drug Action
Team Partnership and the Tackling Alcohol Partnership since 2000. Alcohol
services have recently been extended and improved via QIPP. Jackie Hall,
SCC Integrated Commissioning Unit, Commissioner will outline the services
and issues for clients linked to homelessness. An overview of the substance
misuse services is attached at Appendix 7.

Version Number 3



13.

14.

15.

16.

Mental Health Services are provided in Southampton by the Southern Health
NHS Foundation Trust. Dr Shanaya Rathod, will give the panel an insight into
the issues for mental health services and homelessness. An overview of the
city’s mental health services is attached at Appendix 8.

John Callaway, a social worker predominantly supporting vulnerable adults
with complex alcohol needs will highlight a number of case studies that reflect
some of the issues facing his clients. It is also intended that a strategic
perspective is also given on the key issues for adult safeguarding — to be
confirmed.

It is also planned that the panel will be have an overview of the council’s
children’s safeguarding perspective - a representative from the children
safeguarding team is still to be confirmed.

The Panel is invited to have a discussion on the overall model of provision for
homelessness health from a practitioner’s perspective with those giving
evidence for access to health services and accommodation and support
services provided by voluntary sector.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
Capital/Revenue

17 None
Property/Other
18. None.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:

19.

The duty to undertake overview and scrutiny is set out in Section 21 of the
Local Government Act 2000 and the Local Government and Public
Involvement in Health Act 2007.

Other Legal Implications:

20. None

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS
21. None

KEY DECISION? No

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: ALL

Version Number 4



SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices

Inquiry Plan Version 3

Overview of Society of St James

Overview of the Two Saints

Overview of No Limits

Overview of the Chapter 1 Kingsley House

Overview of Homeless Healthcare Team

Overview of Substance misuse services

© N g ~wId =

Mental Health Services, southern Health

Documents In Members’ Rooms

1. None

Equality Impact Assessment

Do the implications/subject of the report require an Equality Impact
Assessment (EIA) to be carried out.

Yes/No

Other Background Documents

Equality Impact Assessment and Other Background documents available for

inspection at:

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the Access to
Information Procedure Rules / Schedule
12A allowing document to be
Exempt/Confidential (if applicable)

1. None

Version Number




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 7

Appendix 1
INQUIRY PROGRAMME (Amended March 2014)

Meeting 1: 20 February 2014

SETTING THE SCENE

National and local picture of homelessness

Single homelessness health needs and trends

Consider the health inequalities of homelessness compared to the local population and
cost /impacts of demand on services

Outline of the model for homelessness prevention for adults and young people

To be invited:

Sarah Gorton, Homeless Link

Liz Slater, Housing Needs Manager

Matthew Waters, Commissioner for Supporting People and Adult Care Services
Pam Campbell, Homelessness Health team*

Clir Payne, Cabinet Member for Housing and Sustainability

CliIr Shields, Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social Care

Visits to be arranged prior to meeting*
Homeless Health Team
Street Homeless Prevention Team

Meeting 2: 20 March 2014

PART A: ACCESS TO AND DISCHARGE FROM HEALTH SERVICES
To be invited:

Homeless Health team, Pam Campbell

Substance Misuse Services, Colin McAlister

Mental Health services — Southern Health

Housing Coordinator, NHS Acute Care Support Team, Sean Smith?
Adult Safeguarding, John Callaway, Southampton Social Services

PART B: ACCOMMODATION BASED SERVICE PROVIDERS
Adults:

Society of St James*

Two Saints*

Young People
YMCA

Chapter 1*
No Limits*

Visits to be arranged prior to meeting*

Two Saints, Patrick House, Breathing Space, No Limits
GP Forum 12" March

Good practice examples — to be advised




Meeting 3: 2" April 2014

ACCESS TO AND SUSTAINING LONG TERM ACCOMMODATION

To examine the barriers to remaining in long term accommodation, potential health risks
of poor quality accommodation and availability of suitable accommodation.

To be invited:

Access to suitable long term accommodation
Overview of housing provision — Sherree Stanley
Regulatory Services — licensing and quality
Landlord’s perspective

Probation Services

Sustaining long term accommodation
Developing life skills - Booth Centre & YMCA
Family Mosaic - Floating support

Welfare advice, social fund

Meeting 4: 17" April 2014

TACKLING COMPLEX HEALTH AND OTHER NEEDS ASSOCIATED WITH
HOMELESSNESS

Issues and barriers for agencies experiencing frequent / specialist contact with single
homeless people

To be invited:

UHS* TBC

GPs TBC

Ambulance Services?

Police?

JCP- Andrew Sherman,

EU Welcome, Dave Adcock - No recourse to public funds

Visits to be arranged prior to meeting*

Meeting 5: 15" May 2014

REVIEW OF THE EVIDENCE

Overview of the issues

What / where will services be in the next few years?
What is the strategy for this client group?

FIRST DRAFT OF RECOMMENDATIONS
Public Health

Housing Needs Manager

Supporting People Commissioner
CCG/ICU

Healthwatch

University?



Agenda ltem 7

the society o

James>

believing in your future
A Report Concerning the Society’s Southampton Homelessness Services
1. Our Clients

People who become homeless lack resources, not just financial but personal. Most
don’t have families and friends on whom they can call for positive, effective support,
and most are inclined to act impulsively, lacking the skills or motivation to make — and
then stick to — plans to secure their future wellbeing. So it is no surprise that many
homeless people have grown up in unstable environments characterised by abuse,
neglect, poverty and the involvement of social care and other statutory agencies. Like
their parents, many have issues with alcohol and drugs, mental and physical health
and/or offending behaviour. Many are vulnerable and some have personal care needs,
physical or learning disabilities.

The homelessness sector in Southampton has got better and better at enabling clients
to make sustainable progress so that they achieve independence and are no longer
reliant on services. We have also got better at diverting clients away from supported
residential services altogether, and rationing these services to ensure that we only
provide supported housing — including hostels — to those that need it the most. This
means that our client group is increasingly comprised of the most chaotic clients with
the most complex needs, many having spent years in and out of prisons, psychiatric
units, local authority care (as children) and social services. Many of our clients are
regular users of A & E departments and psychiatric hospital inpatients or persistent
ambulance callers. Many also spend a great deal of time behaving antisocially, in
police custody or prisons.

2. Our Approach

The Society’s Homelessness Services deliver housing-related support to clients.
“Support” means that we empower and enable clients to do things for themselves
(rather than doing it for them) whenever possible. “Housing-related” means that our
work has a pragmatic focus on building the skills and networks that clients need to live
independently and sustain independent accommodation, addressing the issues that
stand in the way of such progress. Areas covered include: -

Providing the basics (accommodation, usually utilities, sometimes food),
Addressing alcohol and drug use,

Stabilising mental and physical health,

Debt management and maximising income, help with benefits and jobsearch,
Finding meaningful constructive ways of spending time,

Reducing offending and antisocial behaviour,

Building links with other agencies, support services and families, to help make
progress and sustain it after they leave our services.

We do not provide counselling or psychotherapy, but our approach is grounded in the
motivational interviewing approach. This involves finding out what is important to each
individual and using this as a starting point, helping the client to identify their goals and
then dividing the path towards these goals into small, achievable steps. Each client
has a keyworker (caseloads are around 6 to 9) responsible for working with the client
to assess needs and risks and devise and review action plans.



A key challenge for our services is to develop trusting professional relationships with
individuals who are very wary of authority; people involved in illegal activities who may
have a great deal of negative experience in their dealing with social workers, teachers,
police etc. The residential nature of our services helps to overcome this: unlike other
agencies we do not rely on clients keeping appointments because we work where they
live! We have also designed our service delivery around our clients by, for example,
allowing clients to drink alcohol on the premises (rather than on the streets) and
providing in-house needle exchange services, as a first step in engaging drug users
with more therapeutic drug treatment services.

Another example of our pragmatic approach is encouraging clients to enter into
“Managed Drinking Contracts”, reducing the harm caused by alcohol use by agreeing
a daily limit and restricting access to their personal money until they get used to a less
destructive pattern of alcohol use.

Our role is to provide environments in which clients have as many opportunities as
possible to make positive choices. For many of our clients, the motivation to change is
triggered by something personal to them such as a health scare or the opportunity to
have some contact with their estranged children. On such occasions we respond
quickly and effectively — before the motivation fades — to support the client to change
their lives for the better.

In addition to housing-related support we provide “intensive” housing management,
funded by rents and service charges, including an out of hours security service that
manages antisocial behaviour in services without 24-hour staff cover.

3. Our Services
The following Society of St James SP services are those most central to

homelessness provision in Southampton'. Each contract was awarded by SCC
following competitive tendering exercises: -

Southampton Street e 26-bed hostel (full board) with 24- Funded from SP
Intensive and hour staffing contract with
Resettlement e 10-bed shared house/hostel without | associated rent.
Homelessness Service 24-hour staffing (St Theresa’s House)
o 12 supported flats at 2 locations
Jordan House o 26-flats, Millorook Road East Funded from SP
Intensive-Lifeskills and | ¢ 3 single and 2x2-bed flats at Denzil contract with
Resettlement Avenue associated rent.
Homelessness Service
The Alcohol Service e A 9-bed shared house with 7-day Funded from SP
staff cover and meals provided. contract with
e Two 5-bed self-catering houses with | associated rent and
daily staff support. SCC Care Contract.?

' The Society manages several other SCC SP contracts including two mental health contracts.

% The Alcohol Service has a block domiciliary care contract because of the high number with personal
care needs (e.g. incontinence). In other services, where appropriate, we will assist clients to access
individual domiciliary care packages spot purchased by Social Care.



4. Needs and Outcomes

SP services are, in essence, preventative services: they have been described as “the
fence at the top of the cliff — which means you don’t need a fleet of ambulances at the
bottom™. In 2009 DCLG research commissioned by the Department of Communities
and Local Government demonstrated that the £1.6 billion spent nationally on
Supporting People resulted in a net saving of £3.4 billion®.

When clients stay in our services their mental and physical health improves, substance
use reduces, and there is a reduction in their use of expensive emergency services.
Their antisocial and offending behaviours reduce, as do the associated costs of police,
prisons, the criminal justice and offender management services. A significant
proportion of clients make more sustained progress whilst being supported by our
services, achieving a degree of independence and a more settled lifestyle that they
manage to sustain after leaving our services.

92 clients moved on from the Society’s homelessness services in 2013°. Of these, 73
(79%) moved on in a positive, planned way, 25 of whom (27%) moved into
independent accommodation: -

% with % of those with Of the 25 who moved | % still in the
92 clients needs in a need who on to independent accommodation
this area made progress accommodation
Physical Health 61% 78% After 2 months 96%
Mental Health 50% 78% After 3 months 96%
Substance Misuse® 84% 61% After 6 months 85%
Manage Self Harm 26% 81% After 9 months 62%
Avoid harm from others 20% 94% After 12 months 58%

5. Future Challenges

e There is a general need for more move-on accommodation, particularly self-

contained flats.

e Our clients are amongst those that are “furthest from the employment market” and
as such most vulnerable to the stricter sanctions regime which can leave them
without personal benefits for up to 3 years. \We need to work more closely with Job
Centre Plus to increase their understanding of how bet to help our clients make

progress.

e We also need to find new ways of working with “revolving door” clients — those with
the most complex needs, who make the least progress and are most costly to the
public purse. Two such approaches are “Housing First” and “Making Every Adult

Matter”.”

® Michael Patterson — Director, Support Solutions
* The research was carried out by Cap Gemini. It can be found at
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment data/file/16136/1274439.pdf

® Most of these figures have been downloaded from the SP Client Record and Outcomes Office hosted
by the University of St Andrews. Unfortunately these figures do not include the Alcohol Service as there
was a technical problem in accessing information for this service.

® Heroin, crack or severely dependent alcohol use. Often all three.
"1 will go into more detail on these on 20" March. If you can’t wait, go to http://meam.org.uk/ and

http://www.shp.org.uk/story/housing-first-provides-stability-chronically-homeless-people




This page is intentionally left blank



m 7/
3

Homelessness and Health
Two Saints
Two-Saints

APPENDIX 3

Two Saints’ work in Southampton is with Single Homeless People. We have three main services, all of
which work at the front end of the homelessness pathway.

1. Cranbury Avenue Day Centre
The Day Centre is an open-access drop in centre for anyone within the city. As such it is unusual in that it

can offer support and advice to people with no recourse to public funds. These people cannot use other
Supporting People services and so would otherwise be without any support. Within the Day Centre Two

Saints offers a range of different services to clients:

e The Basic Needs Service — giving clients access to a hot shower, laundry, a hot meal and,

importantly, somewhere safe to be during the day.

The Accommodation Finder Service — supports clients to access housing from the private rented
sector. We liaise with landlords to source suitable flats etc.

The Benefits Advice and Skills Development Service — benefits advice, support with benefit
applications, Jobsearch, IT skills, CV writing and related support. This is staffed whenever the

Day Centre is open
Real Lettings South (Private Sector Leasing Scheme) — Real Lettings takes flats from private

landlords on long (e.g. 5 year) leases, and then lets them to people who would otherwise be

homeless.

The Day Centre also acts as a hub within which clients can access other services:
The Street Homeless Prevention Team — Southampton City Council (SCC)

The Homeless Health Care Team — Solent NHS

Floating Support service
Other agencies, for example DWP or CAB, offer timetabled advice clinics

The Day Centre has seen a marked increase in people using its services, particularly more recently.

1600
1400 Total Day Centre Usage /
1200 /
1000 A\ /
800//\-/\/\/\\//—
600
400
200
o4+—p - eTotal.
m g 88 LIS S TN AagdEgE R

The Day Centre receives some general funding from Southampton City Council, as well as specific
monies to fund work such as the Accommodation Finder. The shortfall between funding received and



Homelessness and Health
Two Saints
actual running costs has, over recent years, been covered by Two Saj nts

fundraising and Two Saints’ reserves. This is not sustainable in the long
run and the situation will become worse as further SCC funding
reductions take effect. It will be impossible to continue to offer the current level of service to clients.

2. Patrick House

Patrick House offers two services within the homelessness pathway.

a. Assessment Service

Around 20 rooms at any one time are occupied by clients whose needs are being assessed. We have a
maximum of 4 weeks to complete this assessment, during which time it is necessary to gain their trust,
complete a full Risk Assessment and Risk Management Plan, assess support needs and agree a Support
Plan and make a referral to whichever support services are needed. These can include other
homelessness services within the pathway and also specialist services like professional counselling,
substance misuse or mental health. Referrals to homelessness services can include any service within
the homelessness pathway.

b. Intensive Service

The other 36 rooms are given over to the Intensive Service. This supports clients to address the issues
that have contributed to them becoming homeless. This may include ensuring that they make use of
the specialist services mentioned above, or working directly with them to develop the attitudes,
motivation and practical skills to allow them to succeed in their own, independent accommodation.

Support within Patrick House is funded by Southampton City Council. This funding is also supplemented
by accommodation charges payable for the rooms.

3. Breathing Space — Hospital Discharge Service

Breathing Space is a new service to Southampton that fully opened in February. We work with the
General Hospital to assess the housing and clinical needs of homeless people who have been admitted
to hospital, so that they have somewhere suitable to live when they are discharged. If there is no
suitable accommodation then we have a small (8-bed) building in Swaythling where clients can complete
their recovery. This can include clients from other hostels within the pathway, as sometimes the hostel
environment, particularly the influence of peers, can hamper recovery.

Breathing Space has very short term funding from the Department of Health, which will end in the next
few months. Early indications are that the project is successful at:

e Helping homeless people to successfully recover

e Reducing readmissions to hospital

e Minimising unnecessary nights in hospital
We are looking at ways to secure the longer term future for Breathing Space. However the short

funding period is unlikely to give enough time to accumulate enough evidence for the CCG. Another 6
montbhs is likely to provide higher quality and more compelling data.

Health Issues faced by Homeless People
The most common issues that our clients face are:
e Alcohol issues - nausea/shakes/sweats/other withdrawal symptoms
e Addiction issues - withdrawal/sweats/ shakes
e Chronic and enduring mental health issues
e Chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD) - chronic bronchitis, emphysema etc
e Deep vein thrombosis
e Hepatitis C
e HIV
e Gastric issues due to poor diet



Homelessness and Health
Two Saints
e Coldsand Flu Two-Saints

e Gout/foot problems
e Depression/suicidal behaviours
e TB

As a response to these issues our staff will:

e Link into drug services — make referrals and sometimes accompany clients to initial
appointments

e Support clients to access the walk in centre

e Liaison, informal conversations etc with the Homeless Healthcare Team. As they are based at
the Day Centre we take clients across as well

e Issue warm clothing and sleeping bags

e Provide warm drinks and food

e Make referrals to the Street Homeless Prevention Team

Our clients, at a recent focus group and at regular updates and consultations, report that their health is
not a priority for them. Clients’ priorities are more basic; getting something to eat and somewhere safe
to stay. This further divides up:

a) Where a client is looking for somewhere to stay, perhaps a hostel or a flat, this takes up a large

amount of their time. Health appointments are seen as a distraction. Moreover clients will
ignore or play down any ill health, as they may worry that this will become an issue that gets in
the way of them securing accommodation.

b) Where a client is sleeping rough, either whilst waiting for accommodation, because they have
no recourse to public funds or where they choose to do so rather than submitting to the rules
inherent in hostel or other accommodation, they are only interested in securing somewhere
safe to sleep for the night; iliness is seen as irrelevant. For example one client said, “You get very
fatalistic. If you wake up the next day, you wake up. If not, then there’s nothing left to worry
about anyway”.

A Suggestion from Two Saints’ frontline staff

It is best to engage homeless people with health services immediately when they mention a health
issue. The Homeless Healthcare Team is an excellent service, but it operates as a GP Surgery, with
appointments. Homeless people’s lives are often chaotic, meaning that they do not plan well into even
the near future, and so miss appointments. The effect of subsequent alcohol or drugs means that what
earlier was a pressing health need can become less of a priority.

Staff suggested that having someone with nursing training, perhaps not a fully qualified nurse but with
enough knowledge to operate a triage/sign posting service on site would be excellent. This would offer
support to our clients without them having to make an appointment.



Homelessness and Health
Two Saints

HEALTH ISSUES FACED BY RESIDENTS OF PATRICK HOUSE (TWO TWO sa_i nts

SAINTS ASSESSMENT CENTRE):

There are many health issues faced by residents. This is an outline of the key issues.
Physical Health:

Many residents have complications from alcohol misuse. These range from cirrhosis of the liver
and alcohol related dementia to peripheral nerve damage and pancreatitis and chronic stomach
problems. Some residents are subject to the End of Life programme as a result of this and there
has been a move to include people within this provision who have alcohol related issues.

As a result of alcohol issues residents can be at increased risk of falling and health issues can be
further complicated as a result of injuries that occur. In general, homeless people are at a
greater risk of injury and death from falls compared with the general population. Falling into
roads and being hit by motor vehicles is an increased risk for homeless people.

AS a result of general poor health homeless people are at increased risk of suffering from
respiratory illnesses ranging from bronchitis to chronic obstructive pulmonary disease. Living on
the streets or residing in very poor housing can exacerbate the effects of respiratory illnesses.
Increased rates of smoking and not seeking medical intervention can increase the risks. We have
had several residents who have been treated for tuberculosis.

Residents suffering with epilepsy, if not medicated formally diagnosed, are at an increased risk
of injuries caused by fitting and falling and can sometimes be dismissed as suffering from the
effects of alcohol or alcohol withdrawal.

The long term effects of diabetes can be more pronounced for homeless people if they are nor
diagnosed at an early stage or if they do not take medication regularly and are not monitored by
health care professionals regularly. Long term complication arising from diabetes can result in
limb amputations, damaged eye sight and severe cardiac complications.

Other residents suffer with a variety of skin disorders such as psoriasis and scabies. These can be
exacerbated by general poor health and not engaging with health services.

Residents who have problems with drug misuse can suffer with a range of physical health issues.
Residents injecting drugs can suffer with deep vein thrombosis, which can be fatal or result in
limb amputations or septicaemia. Sharing needles can result in homeless people contracting
hepatitis and the HIV virus.

Residents using class A drugs can be at risk of overdose, especially if they have not used for
some time or if the drugs they use are contaminated or are particularly strong.

Mental Health:

Homeless people will suffer with a range of mental disorders ranging from mild depression
through to the major psychotic ilinesses such as schizophrenia and bi-polar affective disorder.
Mood disorders can be exacerbated by peoples’ living circumstances, such as living on the
streets and alienation from family and friends.

All mental disorders can be exacerbated by substance misuse. Alcohol consumption will cause a
mood disorder to deteriorate and some drugs will magnify psychotic symptoms. The onset of
psychotic symptoms and deterioration in mood will often result in homeless people being less
able to look after their physical health needs and render them less likely to seek medical
intervention.

Residents will often self medicate with alcohol and other substances which in turn put their
physical health at risk. The issue of dual diagnosis is made more difficult to assess as a result of
this and can result in a person not receiving a service from either the mental health or substance
misuse services.



Homelessness and Health
Two Saints

Homelessness:

Two-Saints

Being homeless can make it difficult to register with a GP and

consequently health issues are not addressed.

Some homeless people have had poor experiences with health services and may have been
dismissed as not deserving interventions.

Being homeless can mean that it is not possible to receive post and people cannot receive
letters for health appointments.

Some homeless people may be unaware of where to seek help and as a result of substance
misuse issues and mental health issues they may lack insight into health issues.

Many homeless clients will have experienced complex trauma in their lives.{ resulting from
abuse} and their behavioural issues can result in the pejorative diagnosis of Personality Disorder.
They are often dismissed as not suffering from any treatable mental disorder and clients may
then resort to substance misuse in order to help reduce their problems. Homeless people who
are using substances will find it very difficult to access any form of psychological therapy.
Living on the streets will very likely have an adverse effect on their health in general and health
issues are sometimes only addressed when clients enter supported accommodation.

Suggestions:

Increased outreach work to help homeless people engage with health services.

Encouraging clients to attend walk in centres and surgeries such as Homeless Healthcare Team
Training for A&E staff on health issues faced by homeless people

Training for GPs in awareness of the difficulties homeless people have in accessing services.
Introduction of a peripatetic health team going on outreach on the streets.

Health education for clients in Day Centres

Increased access to psychological therapies for homeless people.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 7

Appendix 4
Li M%‘I‘s
Helping Young People
Help Themselves
APPENDIX 4

Outline of services delivery

No Limits is an information and advice service for young people up to the age of 26. No Limits
are a member of Youth Access. Youth Access is the national membership organisation for
young people's information, advice, counselling and support services (YIACS). YIACS operate
under the following core principles:

e Young people are central to the service and member agencies are committed to
responding to their needs.

o Member agencies believe that young people have a right of access to quality
information, advice and counselling services.

¢ The basis on which young people are able to make use of a service is made clear to
each of them individually and a contract is agreed where appropriate.

o Member agencies of Youth Access aim to empower young people and treat them with
respect based on an understanding of their individual culture and background.

¢ In all aspects of their work, member agencies of Youth Access aim to counter the
oppression and discrimination faced by young people.

¢ Member agencies of Youth Access are working towards equality of access for all
young people for whom their service is designed.

e Member agencies of Youth Access take all reasonable steps to ensure the safety and
well being of young people and workers in an agency.

e Member agencies of Youth Access are committed to ensuring their workers are
competent to perform the range and depth of duties offered by the agency and provide
a framework for staff development that includes support, supervision and training.

e Member agencies of Youth Access are committed to establishing and maintaining
procedures for monitoring and evaluating the service they provide.

No Limits has three drop-in centres across the city and also provides a drop-in service in 8
secondary schools and the 3 colleges. In addition to the drop-in there are a number of
specialist support services proving one to one support on a range of issues including housing,
tenancy support, substance use, sexual exploitation, young offenders, care leavers, young
carers and LGBTT young people.

The support around housing includes mediation with families, referrals to supported housing
and the local authority, floating support with tenancy maintenance and access to the private
rented sector (A2T). There is also practical support such as use of a shower and laundry,
clothes, food, sleeping bags etc. The support offered is always holistic and will consider
mental and physical health, budgeting, benefit and debt advice, family, relationships and legal
advice.



Client profile and health / housing needs & inequalities (can be supplemented with 1-2
case studies)

About a third of young people accessing No Limits have housing concerns (approx. 2000 a
year) many also have a number of vulnerabilities, e.g. mental health, debt, offending history.
Some are homeless due to a breakdown in family relationships, some have been in supported
housing and been evicted, or have been evicted from the private rented sector, usually for rent
arrears or anti-social behaviour. Some are housed but struggling with feelings of isolation,
living on a low income or properties being in a poor condition. Welfare reform, particularly
sanctions has increased these issues. Young people in receipt of housing benefit are only
entitled to the LHA rate for a room in a shared house which can be difficult for some to
manage. Landlords would often prefer not to house young people or people on benefits or
those without a large deposit and references.

Case study

VJ first came to No Limits looking for housing advice as she was homeless. VJ had been sofa
surfing for 3 months after being evicted from Housing association accommodation due to rent
and council tax arrears. VJ had lived with her boyfriend. However the relationship turned
abusive and violent involving drugs and alcohol. VVJ’s boyfriend has been convicted of
Supplying lllegal substances. VVJ is unemployed and not in education, training or employment.
She wants to be a carer.

VJ successfully completed A2T (pre-tenancy training). VJ is now housed in the PRS in a
shared house with 12 weeks housing support. She is applying for a course in Health and
Social Care. VJ has started to address her debts. She is having counselling to address her
levels of anxiety resulting from her relationship breakdown and period of homelessness.

Case study

17 year old living in the family home and struggling with a chaotic family life, Dad is disabled
having suffered with arthritis and strokes, and Mum suffers with Crones disease and has left
the family home as it was too stressful for her. The client has two brothers and a sister. Al
family members drink alcohol to excess on a regular basis. The client had been drinking
virtually daily which resulted in risky sexual behaviour, inappropriate relationships and not
attending college. The client was self-harming and had attempted suicide in the past. She was
unable to sleep and feeling distressed.

The young person received support on the drop-in and through counselling over a twelve
month period.

The client rarely drinks now and when she does it is not to excess and in a safe environment.
She started attending college regularly and passed her hairdressing NVQ level 1, she is now
studying for a level 2 NVQ. She has also recently got a job as a waitress. Relationships with
her family have improved and she generally feels happier and more able to cope. She has had
the same boyfriend for three months. She is not feeling distressed, is sleeping well and less
anxious. She has remained in the family home which has prevented her from becoming
homeless.

Key client solutions
o Early intervention to prevent homelessness where possible.
o A variety of options to suit the need of the individual.
¢ A holistic approach looking at all the needs of the individual not just their
housing.
o Appropriate level of support which can be reviewed and last until there is no
longer a need.



e Skilled and trained work force.

e Youth Information, Advice, Counselling and Support (YIACS) model of a drop-in
backed up with specialist support.

o Emergency access into supported accommodation.

Main areas of concern

Welfare reform, particularly sanctions.

Difficult to find landlords willing to house young people.

Lack of access to support with mental health/emotional wellbeing (No Limits have
over 90 people on the waiting list for counselling)

Rising debt and poor quality housing in the PRS resulting in health concerns like
poor nutrition, anxiety, depression and self-harm.

Local Housing Allowance is set very low meaning it is difficult to source good quality
accommodation in the Private Rented Sector.

Potential solutions / changes that would make the most difference

Local Housing Allowance rates to be higher.

Young people to receive support when starting a tenancy to ensure they are
registered with a GP and know where to get support to avoid inappropriate use of
emergency services like the emergency department.

Greater access to counselling, particularly for 19-15 year olds.

Private rented access scheme to be part of the local authority response to
homelessness. (Currently funded by national funding secured by No Limits.)



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 7

Appendix 5

APPENDIX 5

Chapter 1 Young People’s Supported Housing Service (Kingsley House)

Profile.

This service provides supported housing to 16-25 year olds who have been homeless or at risk of
homelessness. The service offers a range of accommodation to best suit the skills & circumstances of
the individual. These comprise of hostel places, rooms in shared housing & studio flats, totalling 67
bed spaces. The service also manages 5 transition houses in the private rented sector with a further
26 bed spaces. Our aim is to promote healthy, well balanced independent living.

One of the primary roles of this service is to prevent the need for entry into adult services. Where
we are successful the savings to local spending can be significant.

Overall we find that in terms of general healthcare the provision in the city for our client group is
available & of good quality. At Kingsley House we have a good relationship with our local surgery
and have examples of them going above & beyond to accommodate the needs of our tenants.

In general we find that access to providers offering specialist services such as mental health,
substance misuse, sexual health, health trainer guidance, smoking cessation, dentistry, emotional
support (inc. self harm, anger management) etc. are accessible, although there may be a waiting list.

Main Issues.

The main areas where we fail to find an appropriate co-ordinated response are with clients with
more complex issues (see case study- Martin). This young man failed to ‘fit’ the criteria for mental
health services as his psychoses are drug induced, and arguably self- inflicted. He also fails to ‘fit’
into drug programmes because his drug use is sporadic & variable in terms of substances used. The
frustration for us as a service is that without specialist support this client won’t be stabilised. His self
harming is significant, disturbing & sometimes public. We have been unable to keep housing him
because of his impact on staff & other tenants. He has been referred to an adult service, where the
issues will continue if not worsen. Martin is not his real name, but | could give several real names for
whom this story is accurate.

Another difficulty we have is getting the right support for those with a border-line learning disability,
particularly when they also display high risk behaviours. The service is an unsafe environment for
this group- they are often at risk of violence & exploitation from other clients. We have experienced
sexual &, more regularly, financial abuse of these clients. In our safeguarding review of the past
year- half of the 13 serious safeguarding logs we have been running involve a client with border line
LD (half also care leavers, interestingly). If the client has been assessed to have an IQ score of 70 or
less, a diagnosis of LD can be made & the client qualifies for specialist support. Ours sit at or just
above 70, so do not qualify & come into mainstream provision. My team are trained to give tenancy
support, as per our commission, and are not specialised to support these clients. EVERY client in this



group has failed to hold a healthy tenancy, even if this highly supported environment, and has been
at higher risk of harm from being placed here.

Barriers.

The barriers for these groups of young people are that they don't fit into the criteria of services best
placed to support them. Our service would have more success in housing these groups if additional
specialist support was available where needed.

Another barrier is that my team are not specialists, and the service doesn’t have the finance to pay
for specialist staff. Our commission is tenancy support.

The complex, dual & poly-diagnosis clients will usually have been involved with services previously.
As these services are so stretched- and the client may have missed many booked appointments-
they, quite fairly, will insist that the client comes to them. It is our experience that this group is
unable to commit to attending appointments. Even when we are resolved to take them, we have to
find them first and usually their chaotic lifestyles have taken them elsewhere. We have no power to
stop young people coming & going at will- nor would we want it.

A significant issue for us as a voluntary sector service is being taken seriously by, and achieve good
engagement with, the statutory services our complex clients need support from. It is incredibly
frustrating to work with the borderline LD clients, who may have been assessed as able to decision
make- when the decisions they do make are dangerous & irresponsible. We know that we cannot
keep these clients safe, nor will we prevent them from entering adult services.

For clients generally, limited income leads to lack of good diet. Many live on packets of noodles &
microwave meals. The service does teach cooking, nutrition & budgeting skills, but young people
rarely prioritise diet- and never consider future health issues as a result of poor diet now. At this

service we do not provide meals.

Cannabis use is prevalent among our client group. Other drugs are used, but mostly the use is
experimental & short lived. We have strict rules around cannabis use & work closely with the police,
but cannabis use is ‘normalised’ within the family groups & communities around our clients, so they
rarely take our messages seriously. Those with more serious drug use will always fail in their
tenancies as they will not prioritise rent payment.

Successes.

There have been a couple of occasions where our commissioner has stepped in to open a pathway
to the LD service for us and two clients have been placed into specialist LD housing. Neither client
has come back into the service which would indicate successful placement.

Access to general health care is strong for our client group.

We are successful in promoting healthy independence with a large proportion of the young people
we house- those without complex needs.



Solutions?

Widen the criteria for existing statutory services? This would potentially close the gaps that complex
clients fall through, but with these services already stretched this could only impact the quality of
provision unless more funding were made available.

Create new services for these groups? A very costly exercise.

Invest in more training for existing housing support services? | would suggest that the supported
housing environment would no longer prove a suitable place for young people without these issues
if services specialised.

Utilise current housing stock differently to create more specialist housing? This would prevent the
more vulnerable, at risk clients from entering mainstream services, allowing these services to do
what they were designed to do- tenancy support. With strong partnership work with the necessary
providers it would be possible to create safer, appropriately supportive environments for these
groups.

Stronger partnership work between existing providers? This is essential regardless of any other
solution. The gap between voluntary & statutory services is still too wide. When a provider who
spends hours each day observing behaviours from a client then reports issues to other services, this
needs to be taken seriously and assessed.

Change the rules around ineligible service charges so that more complex clients can at least secure
their housing while they are supported to address their issues? This may go some way to addressing
the ‘revolving door’ issue of clients being evicted due to non-payment of rent, but having nowhere
else to go. These clients will come back through the service again & again, accumulating debt and a
history of evictions, making future secure housing difficult. These people will go into adult services
because private landlords are understandably risk averse with this group.

Wider context.

Please see the attached report. This study was undertaken in 1997 but the conclusions ring true
today. There are significantly higher instances of mental health issues & drug use among homeless
young people as opposed to young people who are provided with a safe and consistent home life.

Young people not getting appropriate care & support can bring long term health issues into
adulthood which will significantly impact the economy in the future.






3

}J)j S
N

AL

v

2 Taylor &francis

Journal of Mental Health (2002) 11, 5, 557-564 BrunnerRoutledgedg rammas,

‘A comparison of homeless and domiciled young people

MARTIN COMMANDER , ANN DAVIS, ANGUS McCABE & ANN STANYER

Department of Social Policy and Social Work, University of Birmingham, Edgbaston,
Birmingham., UK

Abstract

There is growing concern about the welfare of the substantial number of young people who are
homeless in the UK. A sample of young people living in homeless hostels in Birmingham is compared
with one derived from a private household survey carried out in the same city. Sociodemographic
details along with information on mental health, substance use and service uptake were ascertained.
The homeless sample were younger and more likely to be male than their domiciled counterparts. They
had more often spent time in institutional child care and had worse educational records and lower levels
of employment. Young people who were homeless had greater involvement with the police, more
frequently used illicit drugs and reported worse physical and mental health than those in private
households. They were equally likely to see a general practitioner and more often consulted for
‘nerves’ as well as having a higher rate of contact with mental health professionals. The bearing these

findings have on how to tackle youth homelessness are discussed.

Introduction

The report of the national enquiry into
preventing youth homelessness estimated that
almost a quarter of a million young people

became homeless in the UK during 1995

(Evans, 1996). The reasons proposed to
explain this high level of youth homelessness
have predominantly stressed structural ante-
cedents and highlighted the need for better
access to accommodation, improved oppor-
tunities for employment and enhanced social
security benefits (Harvey, 1999). Shortcom-
mngs in these areas leave young people vul-
nerable to becoming homeless when they
have to move out of their childhood homes
(Smith ef al, 1998). However, while not
denying their impact, it is difficult to ignore

the reality that many young people exposed
to these factors do not become homeless.
This lends support to the argument that per-
sonal characteristics make a significant con-
tribution to the risk profile for youth home-
lessness.

Smith & colleagues (1998) reported that
two thirds of the young homeless people they
interviewed came from ‘disrupted’ families
and ended up homeless because of conflict
with their parents, often in the context of
abuse. For the remaining third, from ‘non-
disrupted’ families, their own behaviour was
most likely to be the trigger for them having
to leave home. These results are echoed by
Craig & Hodson (1998) who found that both
childhood adversity (69%) and childhood
conduct disorder (43%) were more prevalent

Address for Correspondence: Dr. Martin Commander, Trust Headquariers, Northern Birmingham Mental Health
Trust, 71 Northeroft Building, Fentham Road, Erdington. Birmingham B23 6AL, UK. Tel. 0121 623 5614; Fax:
0121 623 5777.

TSSN 0963-8237print/ISSN 1360-05670n1ine/2002/0500557-08 © Shadowfax Pu blishing and Taylor & Francis Lid
DOI: 10.1080/09638230020023903



538  Martin Commander et al.

in homeless compared to domiciled young
people. They also identified significant asso-
ciations between early adversity and later
mental illness and between conduct disorder
and subsequent substance misuse. High rates
of both mental illness and substance misuse
have been consistently reported in population s
of young people who are homeless (Blaire &
Wrate, 1997, Sleegers et al., 1998). How-
ever, the pathways by which these and other
individual factors mediate the experience of
homelessness remain uncertain. The aim of
the present study is to compare young people
who are homeless with those living in private
households in Birmingham, UK in order to
explore the role of personal characteristics in
youth homelessness. The findings should
inform the debate about how best to help this
disadvantaged section of the population
(Evans, 1996).

Methods

Sample

A domiciled sample of people aged 16-25
years was obtamed from a random sample of
west Birmingham residents registered with a
general practitioner (GP) drawn from a data-
base held by the Family Health Service Au-
thority. = West Birmingham is consistently
ranked in the top ten most deprived health
districts in England (Smith efal., 1996). The
sample forms part of a wider study examin-
ing psychiatric morbidity rates and service
utilisation in this catchment area (Commander
etal, 1997). Permission was sought from all
GPs with potentially eligible patients to ac-
cess their practice lists and to invite people to
participate in the study. All the subjects
identified were contacted by letter and subse-
quently approached for interview. The sur-
vey was completed between December 1994
and May 1995,

The homeless sample consists of people
aged between 16-25 years drawn from home-
less hostels in Birmingham accepting people
within this age range. Twelve hostels were
eligible to take part and of these 10 agreed to
participate. Two hostels were specifically
for men, six for women and two mixed gen-
der. Four hostels confined themselves solely
to people aged under 25 years. People in the
hostels on a designated census day and all
those subsequently using these facilities dur-
ing the following 5 months were eligible for
inclusion. The study took place between
June and October 1997,

In both surveys subjects were interviewed
in their accommodation by trained research-
ers. Each subject completed a written con-
sent form prior to proceeding with a semi-
structured interview. All completed inter-
views were reviewed by a senior member of
the research team. A payment of £10 was
made to each subject who participated.

Measures

The survey of the domiciled population in
west Birmingham was completed before the
homeless survey was conceived and limited
the range of factors available for comparison.
Where possible, identical items were included
in the homeless survey. Sociodemographic
details and information regarding the use of
services were elicited.

Mental health was assessed using the UK
version of the 5-item mental health dimen-
sion of the SF-36 (MHI-5; McCabe ef al,
1996). This instrument is short and easily
administered. It consists of five questions
rated on a s1x point scale from none to all of
the time (item score 1-6); How much of the
time during the past month have you (1) been
a very nervous person? (2) felt down in the
dumps that nothing could cheer you up? (3)
felt calm and peaceful? (4) felt down hearted
and low? (5) been a happy person? This



inventory gives a total score ranging from 5—
30 and raw scores can be transformed onto a
scale of 0—100, higher scores indicating bet-
ter health. In addition, subjects were asked
the question; Have you taken an overdose or
attempted in any other way to deliberately
self harm (DSH) in the past 6 months?

General health was examined using items
from the UK version of the SF-36 (Jenkinson
etal., 1993). Two questions were asked; (1)
In general would you say your health is: poor,
fair, good, very good or excellent? (2) Com-
pared to one year ago how would you rate
your general health now: much worse, some-
what worse, about the same, somewhat better
or much better? In addition, a question from
the List of Threatening Experiences was uti-
lised (Brugha et al, 1985); Have you suf-
fered from a serious illness, injury or assault
in the past 6 months?

Alcohol use was assessed by a general
question asking whether the person drank
alcohol and subsequently by the CAGE (King,
1985). The latter instrument requires the
following four questions to be answered yes
or no; (1) Have you felt that you ought to cut
down on your drinking? (2) Have people
annoyed you by criticising your drinking? (3)
Have you felt bad or guilty about your drink-
ing? (4) Have you had adrink first thing in the
morning to steady your nerves or get rid of a
hangover? The conventional threshold of
two or more affirmative replies was used to
distinguish a case from non-case. Drug use
wasg assessed using the checklist criteria from
SCID/DSM IR (Spitzer et al., 1992) with
the exception that ‘heroin’ and ‘other opi-
ates’ were merged into one group.

Analyses

The characteristics of homeless and domi-
ciled young people were compared. The data
were analysed using SPSS (1993). Levels of
significance were determined using %* where

Youth homelessness 559

appropriate. The r-test for independent sam-
ples and analysis of variance were used to
compare the MHI-5 scores.

Results

Response

In the homeless sample, 70/119 (59%)
young homeless people agreed to be inter-
viewed. The response rate did not differ
significantly for men (43/72,60%) and women
(27/47,57%). In the domiciled sample 111/
147 (76%) people who werecontacted agreed
to participate. The response rate did not
differ significantly by gender (47/68, 69%
men and 64/79, 81% women) but was greater
overall for the domiciled than the homeless
sample (p<0.01). Of those in the homeless
sample, 36/70 (51%) had been homeless (de-
fined as the time they were last resident in a
private household for 6 months or more) for
more than 6 months and 38/69 (55%) had a
history of sleeping rough.

Comparison of homeless and domiciled
young people

A higher proportion of the homeless sam-
ple were male and aged 16-17 years com-
pared to the domiciled sample (see Table 1).
The latter included a higher percentage of
young people self-identified as Asian whereas
the homeless sample included more people
within the ‘other’ ethnic group. A similarly
high proportion in both domiciled and home-
less samples were borm outside Birmingham.
A quarter of the young people who were
homeless compared with none of those in
private households had spent time in institu-
tional child care. They were also less likely
to identify someone whom they ‘felt particu-
larly close to and could turn to and share their
troubles’. Young homeless subjects had more
often left full time education before the age of



560  Martin Commander et al.

Table 1: Sociodemographic details (%)

Domiciled Homeless
n (%) n (%)
Gender: Male 47/111 (42) 43/70 (61) p=0.01
Agel6-17 years 7/111 (6) 26/70 (37) p<0.0001
Ethniciry =0.000
Asian 44/111 (40) 11/70 (16)
Black 13/111 (12) 11/70 (16)
White 50/111 45) 36/70 (51
Other 4/111 4 12/70 (17
Born in Birmingham 76/111 (69) 40/70 57) NS
Time spent in local aothority care 0/111 ((4)] 18/66 27) p<0.0001
Identify person they are close to 107/111 (96) 60/69 (87) p=0.02
Left full time education < 16 yrs 12/111 (1D 23/69 (33) p=0.0002
Any qualifications 79/111 (72) 33/68 (49) p=0.002
Work in past week 54/111 (49) 5/67 N p<0.0001

16 years, were less likely to have any qualifi-
cations and far less likely to be in work than
their domiciled counterparts. They had also
more often been charged by the police in the
past six months (13/70 (19%) v. 3/111 (3%:);
p=0.0003).

Young people who were homeless were
significantly more likely than their domiciled
counterparts to have used illicit drugs during
the previous 6 months (with the exception of
ecstasy and solvents) as well as using two or
more drugs and injecting (sce Table 2). A
higher proportion reported drinking alcohol
although the level of problematic alcohol
use, determined by the CAGE, did not differ
significantly between the two groups. Home-
less subjects had more often deliberately
harmed themselves during the past 6 months
and experienced a serious illness, injury or
assault. They also reported worse general
and mental health (see Table 2).

Although permanent registration with a GP
was lower than for the domiciled sample
(who were all necessarily registered), young
people who were homeless had a similar
level of contact with a GP in the previous 6

months and were more likely to have seen
their GP for ‘nerves’ during this tme (see
Table 3). They also had greater involvement
with mental health professionals both during
their lifetime (including in-patient care) and
in the past 6 months.

Discussion

Methodological issues

The definition of homelessness is fraught
with difficulty (Sleegers et al., 1998). The
sample in this study is restricted to people
using homeless hostels and is likely to reflect
a marginalised group of young people who
have exhausted other avenues of support.
The hostels included represent those identi-
fied by key local agencies but other establish-
ments, especially smaller privately run facili-
ties, may have been omitted. The
generalisability of the hostel sample to other
sections of the homeless population includ-
ing the ‘hidden homeless’ and people sleep-
ing rough is uncertain. Also, in both surveys,
but especially the homeless, the refusal rate
was not inconsiderable and encourages cau-



Table 2: Health details (%)

Youth homelessness 561

Domiciled Homeless

n (%) n (%)
Drugs used in past 6 months
Cannabis 16/111 (14) 36/66 | (55) p<0.0001
Amphetamines 5/111 5) 10/66 | (15) p=0.01
Opiates 1/111 (@)) 9/66 | (14) p=0.0004
Ecstasy 4/111 4) 7/66 | (11) NS
Cocaine 0/111 (0) 6/66 (9) p=0.01
Hallucinogens 3/111 (3) 3/66 (5) p=0.04
Solvents 0/111 (0) 0/66 (0 -
Any drug use 17/111 (15) 38/66 | (58) p<0.0001
Using two or more drugs 8/111 (7) 18/66 | (27) p=0.0003
Injecting drugs 0/111 (0) 6/66 ©) p=0.00
Alcohol in past 6 mths 517111 (46) 56/69 | (81) p=0.0006
CAGE caseness 4/92 4) 8/65 | (12) NS
Deliberate self-harm in past 6 mths /111 (1) 8/70 | (11) p=0.002
Serious illness, injury or assault in
the past 6 mths 12/111 (11) 34/70 | (49) p<0.0001
General health fair to poor 11/96 (11) 20/69 | (29) p=0.004
Health worse than Lyr ago 13/95 14 17/68 | (25) NS

mean (SD) n | mean (SD) n

MHI-5 transformed score * 72 (19) 95 61 (19)] 65 p<0.0001

* Blaire & Wrate, 1997, mean 60, SD 19.

tion in interpreting our results. The concep-
tual problem defining mental illness repre-
sents a further hurdle to be overcome in
undertaking research in this area. In contrast
to Craig & Hodson (1998), no attempt was
made to generate clinically meaningful diag-
noses in this study. "There are doubts about
the performance of screening instruments
developed in other populations. The home-
less condition itself may lead to ratings that
are not necessarily indicative of underlying
pathology but may reflect demoralisation or
unhappiness (Sleegers etal, 1998). There is
evidence to support the reliability and valid-
ity of the MHI-5 in homeless populations
(Wood et al,, 1997). Less confidence can be
placed in the CAGE (King, 1985) but com-
parative data from the domiciled sample dic-
tated that this measure be used. Likewise in
order to retain comparability, the checklist

items for drug use in SCID (Spitzer et al.,
1992) were utilised even though it was not
feasible to complete the full SCID substance
use section in the homeless sample.

There are Limitations to the use of a private
household survey for comparison, especially
as in this study it was not obtained with that
purpose in mind. The young people in the
west Birmingham sample were not asked if
they had ever been homeless when this may
have been the case for a substantial minority
(Craig & Hodson, 1998). Also, had those
living in private households become home-
less they would not necessarily have been
included in the homeless sample as many did
not originate from the city. Likewise, almost
half the homeless sample were born else-
where. The distortions introduced into the
analyses as a consequence are revealed in
comparisons relating to ethnic group and



562  Martin Commander et al.

Table 3: Service use details (%)

Domiciled Homeless
n (%) n (%)

Permanent registration with GP 111/111 | (100) | 34/67 (51) | p<0.0001
Contact with a GP in last 6 months 85/111 (77) | 44/69 | (64) | NS

Seen GP for nerves in past 6 months 3/111 3) 9/69 | (13) | p=0.007
Ever been psychiatric in-patient 0/111 (0) 7/70 | (10) | p=0.0007
Ever seen a mental health professional (*) 2/111 (2) | 19/70 | (27) | p<0.0001
Seen a mental health professional in the

past 6 months 0/111 () 6/70 (9) | p=0.002

= psychiatrist, psychologist or community psychiatric nurse

place of birth. The stark finding that almost
half the young people who were homeless
identified their ethnic group as ‘non-white’ is
masked by the substantial proportion of peo-
ple from ethnic minorities living in west
Birmingham (14% black and 23% Asian,
1991 Census). When contrasted with the
population of Birmingham as a whole (21%
‘non-white’, 1991 Census) it becomes trans-
parent that young people from ethnic minon-
ties are probably over represented in the
homeless population. The greater likelihood
of their being brought up in deprived areas
with prominent overcrowding and high un-
employment as well as their exposure to
racism and discrimination have been tenta-
tively proposed as reasons for this disparity
(Julienne, 1998). More certainty can be at-
tached to evidence regarding the
unacceptability of much existing homeless
provision to ethnic minorities and credence
given to demands that specific attention be
paid to interventions to tackle homelessness
in this group (Davies & Lyle, 1996, Julienne,
1998). The similarly high proportion of
homeless and domiciled young people who
were born outside the city conceals the con-
siderable mobility of the homeless sample
almost half of whom did not originate from
Birmingham. This too is important for serv-
ice development as it suggests that strategies

targeted on the city alone are likely to have
only a partial impact unless combined with
measures to address the problem countrywide.

Key findings

The homeless sample included a larger
proportion of very young people, aged 16-17
years, than those living in private house-
holds. This may be an inevitable conse-
quence of the fact that as they get older young
people tend to exit homeless settings. It is
also likely to reflect a period of high risk for
becoming homeless. A breakdown in the
relationship with one or both parents is the
precipitant of homelessness in over two thirds
of cases (Craig & Hodson, 1998, Smith ezal.,
1998) and around a third of young homeless
people have spent time in institutional child
care settings (as compared to none of our
domiciled sample). The development of fam-
ily mediation services (Randall & Brown,
1999) and improvements in leaving care serv-
ices (DoH, 1999) link into these early expe-
riences and have been identified as offering
potentially valuable contributions to prevent-
ing youth homelessness (Bruegel & Smuth,
1999). Both antecedents are likely toresultin
lower levels of support being available to
young people as they attempt the transition to
adult life. Qur finding that almost nine out of
10 young people who were homeless could



identify someone they could turn to for sup-
port was more optimistic than the 64% re-
ported in a survey in Edinburgh (Blaire &
Wrate, 1997). However, many of these rela-
tionships are likely to be with young people
in similar circumstances (Randall & Brown,
1999). Such contacts may hinder moves
away from homelessness as young people are
understandably reluctant to disrupt fragile
social networks. Loneliness has been repeat-
edly identified as a key factor undermining
attempts at resettlement (Fitzpatrick er al,
2000). Services are likely to be more effec-
tive if they intervene promptly when young
people first become hemeless and so avoid
them drifting away from their local area and
established friendships (Fitzpatrick, 1999).
Young people who were homeless were far
more likely than their residentially stable
counterparts to have left school before the
age of 16 years and were less likely to possess
any qualifications. This is consistent with
reports from previous UK studies (Blaire
&Wrate, 1997; Craig & Hodson, 1998) and is
corroborated by Breugel & Smith (1998)
finding that over half the homeless young
people in their sample had been excluded
from school. Along with early aversive expe-
riences at home, poor educational attainment
provides a marker for people at high risk of
becoming homeless (Craig & Hodson, 1998;
Breugel & Smith, 1998) and should draw
attention to the need for additional support,
not least in school. Their weak academic
performance also helps explain why less than
one in 10 young homeless people were in
work and underlines the importance of
schemes to facilitate access to training and
meaningful occupation (SEU, 1998).

The present study reinforces concerns re-
garding the well being of young people who
are homeless (Blaire &Wrate, 1997; Craig &
Hodson, 1998). When compared to the domi-
ciled group, the homeless sample experi-

Youth homelessness 563

enced worse general health including a greater
likelihood of having suffered a serious ill-
ness, injury or assault within the previous six
months. They scored lower on the MHI-5,
had more comumonly deliberately self harmed
and reported more extensive illicit drug use,
including polydrug use and injecting. Young
people who were homeless were also more
likely than their residentially stable counter-
parts to have been charged with an offence by
the police during the previous 6 months. This
may be at least partly accounted for by higher
rates of conduct disorder (Craig & Hodson,
1998). Itis not possible to unravel the tempo-
ral order of events in a cross sectional survey
but Craig & Hodson (1998) found that mental
health problems (mental illness, substance
misuse and conduct disorder) predated the
onset of homelessness in the majority of
cases. This strengthens the argument for the
early identification of those at risk and for
prompt intervention to avert any corrosive
impact on home life and schooling and sub-
sequently support networks and employment.
But what about the requirements of those
young people who are presently homeless?
Overall contact with GPs was comparable
with our domiciled sample and consultations
for ‘nerves” higher in the young people who
were homeless. The latter were also more
likely to have had contact with a mental
health professional and a significant minority
had been in a psychiatric hospital. These
findings contradict suggestions that young
homeless people have difficulty negotiating
their way around an unco-ordinated care sys-
tem (Evans, 1996). The obstacle appears to
be with the services provided rather than
simply to do with access. The quality of
services available to homeless people has
often been poor and the attitude of service
providers frequently negative (Fisher &
Collins, 1993). Where dedicated and enthu-
siastic specialist psychiatric services have



564  Martin Commander et al.

been initiated they have proven unattractive
to young people perhaps sensitive to the
disparaging images associated with mental
disorder (Blaire & Wrate, 1997). Agencies
concemed with young pzople who are home-
less should consider training their own staff
to be better able to tackle common mental
health problems and either develop ‘in-house’
services or close ties with other providers
targeting young people in order to offer more
specialist psychotherapeutic interventions
(Commander et al., 1998).

References

Blaire, C. &Wrate, R.M. (1997). Feeling Bad: The
troubled lives and health of single young homeless
people in Edinburgh. Edinburgh: The Young Peo-
ples Unit, Royal Edinburgh Hospital.

Breugel, [. & Smith, J. (1999). Taking risks—Analysis
of the risks of homelessness for young people in
London. London: Safe in the City.

Brugha, T., Bebbington, P., Tennant, C. & Hurry, J.
(1985). The List of Threatening Experiences: a
subset of 12 life event categories with considerable
long-term contextual threat. Psychological Medi-
cine, 15, 189-154.

Commander, M.J., Sashidharan, S.P., Odell, S. &
Surtees, P.G. {1997). Access to Mental Health
Carein an Inner City Health District, L. Pathways
into and within specialist psychiatric services.
British Journal of Psychiatry, 170, 312-316.

Commander, M.J,, Davis, A, McCabe, A. & Stanyer,
A.(1998). Keeping alidon it. Youth Homelessness
and Mental Health. Birmingham: University of
Birmingham.

Craig, T.K.J. & Hodson, S. (1998). Homeless youth in
London I: Childhood antecedents and psychiatric
disorder, Psychological Medicine, 28, 1379-1388.

Davies, I. & Lyle, 8. (1996). Homelessness Amongst
Young Black Minority Ethnic People in England.
Leeds: Nuffield Foundation.

DoH (Department of Health) (1999). Me, survive out
there ? New arrangemenis for young people living
in and leaving care. London: DoH.

Evans, A. (1996). Report of the national enguiry info
preventing youth homelessness. London: CHAR.

Fisher, K. & Collins, J. (1993). Homelessness, health
care and welfare provision. London: Routledge.

Fitzpatrick, 8. (1999). Pathways to independence: The

experience of young homeless people. Edinburgh:
Secottish Homes.

Fitzpatrick, S., Kemp, P. & Klinker, S. (2000). Single
homelessness. An overview of researchin Britain.
Bristol: The Policy Press.

Harvey, B.(1999). The problem of homelessness: a
European perspective. In, S. Hutson. & D. Clap-
ham (Eds.), Homelessness: Public Policies and
private roubles, 58-73. London: Cassell

Jenkinson, C., Coulter, A. & Wright, L. (1993). Short
form 36 (SF 36) health survey questionnaire. Nor-
mative data for adults of working age. British
Medical Journal, 306, 1437-1440.

Julienne, L. (1998). Homeless and young single people
from black and minority ethnic communities. Youth
and Policy, 59, 23-37.

King. M. (1985). At risk drinking among general
practice attenders: Validation of CAGE question-
naire. Psychological Medicine, 16, 213-216.

McCabe, C.J., Thomas, H.J., Brazier,].E. & Coleman,
P. (1996). Measuring the mental health status of a
population: A comparisonofthe GHQ [2and SF36
(MHI-5). British Journal of Psychiatry, 169, 517-
a2l

Randall, G. & Brown, S. (1999). Prevention is belter
than cure: New solutions o street homelessness

from Crisis. London: Crisis.

SEU (Social Exclusion Unit). (1998). Rough sleeping.
Report by the Social Exclusion Unit. London:
HMSO.

Sleegers,l., Spijker, J., vanLimbeck, J. & van Engeland.
H. (1998). Mental health problems among home-
less adolescents. Acta Psychiarrica Scandinavica,
97, 253-259,

Smith, J., Gillord, S. & Sullivan, A. (1998). The family
background of homeless young people. London:
Family Policy Studies Centre and Joseph Rowntree
Foundation,

Smith, P, Sheldon, T. A. & Martin, S. (1996). Anindex
of need for psychiatric services based on in-patient
utilisation.  British Journal of Psychiatry, 169,
308-316.

Spitzer, R.L., Williams, J.B.W,, Gibbon, M. & First,
M.B. (1992). The Structured Clinical [nterview for
DSM IR (SCID): L. History, Rationale, and
Description. Archives of General Psychiarry, 49,
624-629.

SPSS. (1993). SPSS for windows. Release 6,0. Chi-
cago; SPSS Inc.

Wood, P.A_, Hurlburt, M.S., Hough, R.L. & Hofstetter,
C.R. (1997). Health status and functioning among
the homeless mentally ill: An assessment of the
medical outcomes study SF-36 scales. Evaluation
and Program Planning, 20,2, 151-161.



Copyright of Journal of Mental Health is the property of Carfax Publishing Company
and its content may not be copied or emailed to multiple sites or posted to a listserv
without the copyright holder's express written permission. However, users may print,
download, or email articles for individual use.






Notes

This information is based on domiciled and homeless young people aged 16-25 like KH.

e This study was written in 2002 based on young homeless people. Evidence has come from
1995-1998. This shows a comparison of how much services have or have not changed
between then and now.

e Although this has been sampled through West Birmingham it still gives a good
representation on young people and mental health.

e Table 1: talks about age, ethnicity and gender. This gives statistics of those with mental
health who were domiciled and homeless. This is a comparison of health between the two
groups and how great the difference is or is not.

e Table 2: illustrates the health details of those who are domiciled or homeless and also gives
statistical information. This table is based on those who consume have consumed. (like
*Martin*)

e Table 3: Shows the type of contact or how frequent the contact is with the health services.

This shows that access to health services was not great in 1995-1998. Now in 2014 access for those
with mental health and who are domiciled or homeless access to health services is not that much
better.






Chapter 1 Case Study

Martin is a 21 year old male in supported hostel accommodation. He previously had
lived in a more independent self contained flat. When he was originally assessed for
housing Martin had few support needs. It was known that he had a previous drug
addiction to an amphetamine but he hadn’t used in the last month before the
assessment date. He had also previously taken MDMA and smoked cannabis. In
these circumstances Martin had not had professional support to stop his addiction;
he had done this by himself with nothing but willpower. In his initial assessment,
Martin disclosed that he used to self harm and had only on one occasion entered
hospital for treatment of wounds. He had also disclosed trying to commit suicide by
overdosing on sleeping medication on two different occasions. Martin had previous
connections with the local mental health team and had been diagnosed with having a
Borderline Personality Disorder and had been prescribed two different forms of
medication one of which was an anti-psychotic drug and the other an anti-
depressant.

Martin had previously coped in the self contained flat until he felt unable. At his first
review he felt that he had not managed to budget well and had mostly spent his
benefit money on drugs, amphetamines again. This lead him to neglect buying food
and topping up his electricity and gas meters. Martin was often found sat in the dark
with no electricity, heating or food. He was still taking medication for his mental
health needs. The second review showed little to no improvement; Martin still
struggled with budgeting for food and utilities and would spend his money mostly on
drugs. Martin was no longer involved with the local community mental health team,
so had not been taking his regular prescription. He disclosed that he was still
regularly taking amphetamines, and was open to discussions of making contact with
local drug services to help him with his addiction. When he lived in the self-contained
flat he was in contact with an Early Intervention in Psychosis (EIP) team worker due
to his drug use leading to drug induced psychosis. This psychosis had worsened and
he eventually was admitted to stay in the local mental health unit. The stay lasted
nearly a month, Martin’s well being had improved greatly. He had a discussion with
his worker within the project and his EIP worker and agreed to move into the more
intensive support unit of the hostel accommodation.



About a month after moving into the hostel accommodation Martin showed signs of
further deterioration and had been abusing his medication prescribed for his mental
health and psychosis. He had asked a member of staff to look into entering a detox
facility due to the effects of taking drugs. Martin often presented to staff in the
reception area of the building stating that he had thought about self-harming, and a
want to take morphine. He was receptive with having conversations with staff. There
was an occasion where Martin presented with psychotic symptoms as previous, but
this time they were more serious and worrying as he was threatening to self harm or
possibly attempt suicide and had also made threats of harming other people.
Emergency services were contacted and he was admitted to hospital and then
admitted onto the mental health unit, but he was not sectioned. When Martin had left
the unit and returned to the hostel, it was decided by management that due to the
risks posed by Martin not only to himself but also to the other young people around
him, that the project was no longer prepared to house him. A referral was made to
adult services and he is to move on to accommodation provided by adult services.

Being in a hostel situation and in supported housing had a major effect of Martin’s
health and well-being as well as his stability in maintaining a tenancy. The housing
and how it affected him mentally lead to an increase of drug use, meaning that he
often had little to no money to feed himself and maintain utilities in his flat. Martin’s
drug use eventually lead to drug induced psychosis which affected his current mental
health needs. This then lead to a further breakdown in his housing situation.



Agenda ltem 7

Appendix 6
%%PENDIX 6

HOMELESS HEALTHCARE TEAM
1. Aims and objectives

Solent NHS Trust holds a contract with NHS England to provide primary care provision to
homeless people in Southampton. The service is provided by Solent NHS Trust. The
contract has been in place since 2000 but the team itself has been in existence since
1992. In 2001 the provision was formally extended to include refugees and asylum
seekers. This specialist, multi-disciplinary team provides care both to individual homeless
people and families across Southampton. The team fulfils an important function by
addressing health inequalities in the city and has a strong public health focus.

2. Target Group

The service is provided to homeless people across the city of Southampton. The
description “homeless” encompasses people living in:

e hostels or night shelters,

e bed and breakfast,

e supported accommodation for those with mental health or substance misuse
problems,
refuge houses for women fleeing domestic violence,
approved premises for offenders,
bedsits or private rented accommodation without security of tenure,
mobile homes, caravans or cars;
as well as people with no accommodation who are residing on the streets.

In addition the team provides care to asylum seekers or migrants from abroad who find
themselves without support.

Over the years of operation the team has expanded its work to meet the needs of new
groups who are marginalised and who experience problems accessing health care. The
team seeks to uncover and meet new areas of need within Southampton in a bid to
address health inequalities.

3. Services provided

The Homeless Healthcare Team seeks to provide equity of provision for homeless people
whilst recognising that a separate service is needed because many people are unable or
unwilling to access mainstream provision despite having extremely complex needs.

3.1 Comprehensive new patient check for all patients prior to seeing GP which
includes the following:

e Basic physical observations — height, weight, blood pressure

e Current health including completion of template for any long-term conditions
e Recent medication

e AUDIT-C questionnaire for alcohol use. Education and referral on.

Page 1



e Fibrosis markers if appropriate (to determine the likelihood of liver damage)

e Drug misuse — sharing of works, risks. Education and referral on.

e Blood borne virus screening incl. pre-test counselling for HIV, vaccination for Hep B
if appropriate

e MMR vaccination if appropriate

e Smoking cessation advice

e Quantiferon Test for TB and referral if active or latent disease is suspected

e Urine test

e Liaison with past providers (including prisons) to determine recent medication etc.

The new patient check takes between 30-60 minutes.
3.2 GP Provision

There are currently 3 sessional GPs employed by the Team who provide 6 sessions.
There is 1 GP session per day. GPs provide both booked appointments and drop-in
consultations. Appointments are booked for 15 minutes but in reality some consultations
take much longer. GPs are very aware of the danger of compounding problems by
prescribing additional drugs which may be misused. The GPs work very closely with the
Nurse Prescribers within the team.

3.3 Long term conditions

Patients are offered time to discuss the management of their long-term conditions on an
opportunistic basis. Patients rarely attend for planned appointments for this. Team
members sometimes need to be creative in how they can support people. Support
workers can provide assistance in ensuring patients attend secondary care appointments
and screening tests.

3.4 Sexual health services

e Pregnancy testing

e Screening

e Discussion of contraceptive options
e Implanon insertion

3.6 Screening and Vaccination

The team conducts screening at each new patient check and thereafter on an
opportunistic basis. Screening provided includes:

e TB Screening — following NICE guidance

e Blood borne virus screening — Hepatitis and HIV

e Screening for liver disease (Fibrosis Markers)

Page 2



Vaccinations provided include Flu and Pneumococcal, MMR to complete course, Hepatitis
B and any others required.

3.6 Asylum seekers and refugees — including people with no recourse to public
funds
Victims of Human Trafficking

The Team is often the first to become aware of asylum seekers or refugees living in the
City. From a public health perspective it is crucial that appropriate health screening is
provided, for example TB screening. The Homeless Healthcare Team aims to provide this
and then clients are registered with local GPs if they are permanently housed. The team
has also secured a small fund to ensure that essential medication is available to patients
with no recourse to public funds on the basis that prevention is cheaper than costly
hospital admissions.

Recently the Medaille Trust, a voluntary charity, set up a number of house for victims of
sex trafficking. The Homeless Healthcare Team is providing initial screening for these
clients. Of those first screened 50% had positive quantiferon tests (meaning there is a
strong suspicion they have latent Tuberculosis).

3.7 Ante-natal services

The team provides basic ante-natal care and also seeks to facilitate access to a midwife.
This is not always easy because often the women have had experience of having babies
removed at birth and therefore seek to hide their pregnancy and/or do not wish to engage
with healthcare services. The Health Visitors provide care to women in temporary
accommodation and support to new mothers.

3.8 Gypsies and Travellers on illegal sites

The Team drew up this work in conjunction with Southampton City Council. Members of
the Team (usually a Nurse Practitioner and Health Visitor) attend illegal sites to provide
health assessments and urgent care prior to the people being evicted.

3.9 Mental Health Service

Many people who are homeless have mental health issues. The team includes three part-
time Community Mental Health Nurses (two whole-time equivalents) and an Associate
Practitioner. The Community Mental Health Nurses are employed by Southern Health but
their salaries are paid for by the Homeless Healthcare Team. They are based with the
Team in the Two Saints Day Centre and they work jointly with other members of the team.
They offer assessment, treatment (in the form of regular depot medication and CBT
interventions) and support to clients with mental iliness. They also offer advice to other
members of the team about the most appropriate service.

Page 3



The Associate Practitioner supports clients with day to day living, for example
resettlement, budgeting, healthy lifestyles, management of long-term conditions including
substance misuse and accessing healthcare.

The Community Mental Health Nurses and Associate Practitioner provide a service to any
homeless person within Southampton, rather than only those registered with the Team for
PMS services.

The team has been successful in ensuring that a practitioner from the IAPT (Improving
Access to Psychological Therapies) team provides a face to face clinic on a weekly basis
at the Day Centre ensuring equitable access for homeless people who often do not have
adequate telephone or on-line access.

3.10 Health Visiting Service

The Health Visiting Team supports families and pregnant women who are homeless in
Southampton. This includes families from the surrounding area such as Eastleigh and the
New Forest who are placed in temporary accommodation in Southampton but who do not
wish to re-register with a GP. Children are not allowed in the Day Centre where the
Homeless Healthcare Team is based and therefore families are not able to register with
the Team but are supported to register with local GP surgeries. The Homeless Healthcare
Team health visitors remain involved until the family is settled.

Many of the clients they work with have suffered from domestic violence and some of the
children have suffered physical, emotional or sexual abuse. Many of their families are on
the Child Protection Register and they work closely with the Safeguarding Team and
Social Services.

A Family Support Worker provides assistance with resettlement, obtaining sufficient food,
access to schooling and childcare, registration with a GP and accessing healthcare.

The Health Visiting team works with asylum seeker and refuge families as well as families
resident in the trafficking houses run by the Medialle Trust.

3.11 Complementary Therapies

A recent development has been the provision of Acupuncture and Hopi Ear Candling.
These are provided by the Associate Practitioner with the aim of reducing anxiety and
assisting clients in managing their substance misuse. A trained Osteopath also provides a
weekly session on a voluntary basis.

3.12 Facilitation of access to other services
A podiatrist does a morning session once every six weeks at the Team base. This can be

accessed by anyone who is homeless rather than just those who are registered. The
Team also has a weekly session from an Improving Access to Psychological Therapies

Page 4



practitioner. Staff also facilitate access to dental care. It has always been an important
aspect of the work of the Homeless Healthcare Team to advocate for patients to ensure
they have access to appropriate care. This has involved the presentation of patients to the
Vulnerable Adult Board to ensure adequate care is provided. This level of advocacy on
behalf of the most vulnerable and marginalised patients has impacted on many healthcare
services over the past 20 years forcing managers and commissioners to consider how
their service manages the needs of those with health inequalities.

3.13 Enhanced Services

The Homeless Healthcare Team aims to participate in all relevant enhanced services.
This is the despite the fact that there is no specific remuneration involved. This is in order
to ensure that patients registered with the Team are in no way disadvantaged.

3.14 Other work of note

GSF

The team has an active GSF register and are at the forefront of this work locally. The
provision is palliative care for homeless people is a challenging are but one which the
team strive to champion. End-stage liver disease is an area of particular interest.

Teaching and Advice

The Team provides a considerable amount of teaching for the health community and act
as experts for the purposes of information on homelessness, asylum seekers, substance
misuse, etc.

MAPPAs

The team attends Multi-Agency Public Protection meetings for clients registered with the
Team. These seek to minimise the risk to the public.

Performance Indicators and the Faculty of Medicine

The Homeless Healthcare Team Lead GP and Nurse Consultant are members of the
College of Medicine’s Faculty of Homeless and Inclusion Health. This is a nationwide
faculty bringing together experts in these fields. The Faculty have produced some
standards for commissioners and service providers which we are seeking to work towards.
There is a link here: http://issuu.com/collegeofmedicine/docs/homeless health_standards

The Homeless Healthcare Team is striving to meet the standards set out in this document.
“London Pathway” research

Members of the team are currently involved in the very early stages of a research project
which would seek to determine if having a Homeless Healthcare Team nurse visiting and
assessing homeless patients in the local acute hospital and overseeing discharge
arrangements would provide better health outcomes and reduce re-admissions.

Page 5



Service user involvement

The Team strives to obtain the views of service users and runs focus groups every 2-3
years in locations accessible to homeless people. This is recognised as the best way to
obtain reliable opinions in a way that seeks to be supportive of the users themselves. The
views are discussed within the Team and used to inform service development. The need
for pre-bookable appointments came from focus groups. The Health Visiting team are
seeking to develop similar focus groups in the refuge houses.

Participation and Leadership in the areas of homelessness and asylum seekers
Irefugees

Team members participate in a wide variety of forums and meetings aiming to ensure that
the focus is on the patients and their health outcomes. Links to accommodation providers,
and the City Council as commissioners are extremely important. There is also significant
input in areas of substance misuse (particularly drug related deaths) and domestic
violence. Wherever possible a joined up approach is sought in the best interests of
homeless people.

4, Locations of service

The Homeless Healthcare Team is based in a voluntary owned Day Centre for homeless
people. This is a location which provides easy access for homeless people. It also means
they can get all their basic needs met in one single location (the Two Saints charity
provides food, clothing, washing facilities, accommodation and benefits support).

Over the past 20 years the Homeless Healthcare Team has provided GP and/or Nurse
sessions in a number of different voluntary settings. These are reviewed as appropriate in
terms of the numbers of clients seen and whether they would or could attend to be seen at
the Day Centre.

At present a Nurse Practitioner visits Patrick House (the largest hostel in the city and
assessment centre) twice a week to register new patients and to provide care to existing
patients. In addition one of our GPs provides a weekly session there on a Wednesday
morning. There is a fully equipped medical room at the hostel.

The Nurses visit other hostels as necessary to provide care, which may be on an on-going
basis depending on the health needs of individual patients.

The Community Mental Health Nurses and Associate Practitioner also regularly visit
Patrick House and a number of other hostels.

The Health Visitors and Family Support Worker visit the Emergency Accommodation at
Millbrook Road East, all the Women’s Refuge Houses (for women escaping domestic
violence) and the Medialle Houses (for victims of trafficking) on a weekly basis.

Page 6



5. Performance Indicators

The team participates in the Quality and Outcomes Framework, although some disease
areas have very few patients on them. Mental health, Asthma and COPD, Diabetes and
Epilepsy are significant disease areas. The management of long-term conditions is
challenging because it is often exacerbated by substance misuse and/or mental health

conditions as well as by the poor social conditions in which patients reside.

The issue of having specific performance indicators has been addressed in the past but
never reached fruition. Pertinent areas have been screening for blood borne viruses,
substance misuse, management of liver disease (particularly end stage) and Tuberculosis
screening. This is why the team has focussed on the Faculty of Medicine’s standards.

Client profile and health / housing needs & inequalities

Age range Male Female Total
18-24 58 13 71
25-34 149 26 175
35-44 121 15 136
45-54 87 9 96
55-64 35 4 39
65-74 6 0 6
75+ 0 0 0
Total 456 67 523

Health needs

Substance misuse (alcohol &/or drugs which impacts daily life) - 326
Mental health (schizophrenia, bi-polar and psychoses only) — 47
Depression — 98

Clients with no recourse to public funds and those who are unable to access hostel
provision are present particular challenges in terms of providing healthcare.

Key client solutions

Vigorous outreach

Liaison with acute trust & identification of frequent attendees

Suitable accommodation, particularly post-hospital admission

Joint working with professionals from other agencies, voluntary & statutory

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 7

Appendix 7

APPENDIX 7
SUBSTANCE MISUSE

Southampton’s current Substance Misuse Services have been incrementally developed under the
strategic direction of the Drug Action Team Partnership and the Tackling Alcohol Partnership since
2000. Alcohol services have recently been extended and improved via QIPP.

The majority of services are currently commissioned and coordinated by SCC/ ICU in partnership
with CCG with funding transferred from Public Health and the Police and Crime Commissioner.

A new Integrated Drug and Alcohol Substance Misuse Service is currently out to tender and
should be in place by the end of July 2014.

Current Services :

ALCOHOL

Southampton Alcohol Brief Inventions and Counselling Service, run by CRI, is the first point of contact for anyone concerned
with their or someone else’s alcohol use whether mild to moderate dependence, binge drinking, severe dependence or with
complex needs e.g. mental health, child protection, vulnerable adult.

All service users requiring medical interventions such as community or residential detoxification or residential rehab will be
referred on to the New Road Centre.

The New Road Centre

Provides support for more dependant and complex clients they receive referrals from SABICS, Social Services and other specialist
substance misuse and mental health services

The services at The New Road Centre are provided by Southern Health NHS Foundation Trust

Alcohol Specialist Nurse Service
A specialist team working in Southampton General Hospital (UHST) receiving referrals and proactively identifying problematic
drinkers attending hospital offering support and onward referrals

Alcohol Day Detox Service (Solent Healthcare)
Taking referrals from SABICS, New Road Centre and ASNS only, ADDS provides medically supported alcohol detoxification in the
community

Community Wrap Around

Providing and coordinating a wide variety of support and peer support in the community for people concerned by their alcohol
use.

Community Wrap Around Services are provided by The Society of St James

DRUGS

The Bridge is open six days a week and is the first point of contact for people who want help with drugs in Southampton. The
Bridge offers advice and information, harm reduction, one to one and group work and referral to other services or agencies. The
Bridge also provides access to Southern Health NHS Foundation Trust’s care coordination and the rapid prescribing service for
people who need substitute prescribing for heroin and some other drugs.

The Drug Intervention Programme (DIP) provides a similar range of services to The Bridge but is specifically for people who use
drugs and who are involved with criminal justice agencies.

The DIP also provides drug treatment for a person who’s Court Order includes Probation supervised Drug Rehabilitation
Requirement (DRR).

SHARP (Southampton Harm Reduction Partnership) is based at The Bridge and has two components

Assertive Outreach Service ~ providing outreach to engage groups that are underrepresented or may need additional support to
enter treatment and with service users who are struggling to remain in treatment and to re-engage with those who have
dropped out.

Harm Reduction ~ As well as the provision of sterile injecting equipment (needle exchange services) SHARP provides advice,
information and care to reduce the harm of taking drugs including safe injecting techniques, alternatives to injecting, wound
care, BBV testing and inoculations, health checks and referral to further treatment services.

The service also offers a specialist needle exchange service for steroid users.

SHARP also works with a number of pharmacies and hostels in the City to offer Needle Exchange and Harm Reduction Services

YOUNG PEOPLE
DASH Youth Drug and Alcohol Project offering confidential support and advice for drug, alcohol or solvent problems to anyone

1inder 19 vear<s who live< in Sotuuthamonton



FAMILY and CARER
Parent Support Link

A support service for anyone concerned by someone else’s alcohol or drug use

Drugs
Recent adult prevalence rates of Opiate and/ or Crack users are estimated to be 1,707

Alcohol

Increasing risk Higher risk

21 units to 50 units for a man Men who regularly drink over 50 units per week
14 units to 35 units for a woman. Women who regularly drink over 35 units per week.
31,519 10,413

40,249 12,701

Size of the problem
32% of new presentations to drug services (YTD Q3 2013/14) report a housing problem

NFA - urgent housing 10% | 35
Housing problem 22% | 72
No Housing problem 68% | 220

16% of new presentations to alcohol services (YTD Q3 2013/14) report a housing problem

NFA - urgent housing 1% |3
Housing problem 16% | 50
No Housing problem 81% | 244

A snapshot from the Street Homeless Prevention Team (SCC)
Street Homeless Prevention Team engagement

Outreach Q3 2013/14
Total number of individuals engaged 41
Class A drug users 18 (45%)

Hostel referral Sessions (Feb 2014)
Total seen 78
Number with “drug issues more serious that cannabis”20 (26%)

Dual Diagnosis Snapshot
Snap shot view of Homelessness Services Drug Use (Dec 13)

HOMELESSNESS SERVICES | PATRIC | SOTON | JORDA | BOOTH IN TOTALS

RESPONSES K ST. N CENTRE| TOUCH
HOUSE HOUSE FS
Service user has a dual 24 7 18 13 15 77

diagnosis of mental health
and alcohol/substance use




Issues

Recovery
Risk of relapse is raised if suitable, stable accommodation is not available to a person in recovery
People discharged from prison with no suitable, stable accommodation
Substance Misuse as a factor in risk of eviction
= Support initiatives to increase abstinent and supported accommodation for people with a
history of substance use
o IOM houses
o Alcohol Accommodation Tender
= Substance Misuse Awareness training
» Floating support for those at risk of losing tenancy

Overdose
Historic significant incidence of overdose and “near miss events” in hostel accommodation
e Continued support of access to Naloxone and associated training
e Continued effective joint working between Substance Misuse Services and services for
people at risk of or currently Homeless

Blood Borne Virus
The sharing of contaminated injecting equipment presents a significant risk of BBV infection. The
burden of undiagnosed Hepatitis C, in particular, presents significant health costs.
»= Develop interventions to encourage hostel residents to access testing and treatment for
BBV
= Support initiatives to provide harm reduction equipment, advice and information, across our
services for people engaging with homeless services.



This page is intentionally left blank



Southampton Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel
Homelessness Inquiry

Report from Southern Health NHS Foundation Trust
10 March 2014

Agenda ltem 7
southern HearrdikEy Y

NHS Foundation Trust

Homelessness and mental health in Southampton

Overview

Mental health problems and homelessness are intrinsically
linked. Mental ill-health can cause homelessness, and be a
result of homelessness.

National and local data shows homeless people are more
likely to be experiencing mental health problems compared
to the housed population. Evidence also suggests homeless
people are more likely to access acute health services for
their mental and physical health. It is estimated that 60-
70% of homeless people have some form of mental health
problem, including depression, psychosis, and self-harming
behaviour. In many cases these illnesses are undiagnosed.

Histories of childhood abuse, alcohol and substance
misuse, relationship breakdowns, periods in prison, and
bereavements are common experiences amongst people
using homelessness services. All are risk factors in the
development of mental health problems.

Between 10 — 50% of homeless people using mental health
services have some form of dual-diagnosis {(more than one
condition requiring treatment).

How we work with homeless people and services in
Southampton

Our mental health teams work closely with the numerous
homelessness organisations and services in Southampton.
This includes the Homeless Health team, the Street
Homeless Prevention Team, the Floating Support Service,
the Society of St James and Two Saints services. We also
provide substance misuse services which have close links
with homelessness services in the city.

The most common referral route for homeless people in
Southampton is through homelessness services or through
acute/urgent care services where homeless people present

more regularly compared to the housed population.
Homelessness services generally have good awareness
about mental health but are typically not specially trained.

As soon as a person is referred into our services, we will
aim to produce a care plan which will include plans for
suitable accommaodation if this is identified as an issue.
From this point we will link with other services to identify a
housing solution that is appropriate for the individual’s
mental health needs. Finding suitable housing for people
with severe and enduring mental health problems is not
just about finding a ‘roof over their heads’. We are
extremely reluctant to discharge people fram our services
onto the street or into environments where their mental
health may deteriorate, and work hard to prevent this.

Although our clinicians regularly link with homelessness
services and support people with accommodation
challenges, we also have a dedicated housing coordinator
(Sean Smith} who is focussed on securing appropriate
accommodation for service users {especially with complex
housing issues) to reduce situations where a service user is
ready to move on but there is no suitable accommodation
available. Sean has spent a decade building relationships
and networks in Southampton and also trains other staff so
they are better able to help people access suitable
accommodation.

Southampton has a Mental Health Accommodation Panel
(MHAP), chaired by the CCG mental health commissioner,
where all decisions about supported accommodation for
mental health service users are made.

Strengths of the current system

On the whole we have very strong and proactive
relationships with the various homelessness services in the
city. In our experience, Southampton has a higher level of



homelessness service provision compared to the rest of
Hampshire.

The MHAP is effective at finding suitable supported
accommodation in the city, and there are rarely issues with
these placements once identified.

Finding hostel accommodation for people over 25 is quick
and straightforward. Street Homeless Prevention Team are
always extremely helpful and prepared to attend meetings
to discuss accommodation issues. The housing providers
themselves have the final say but as long as clients arrive
with a move-on plan, full risk assessment and support from
the community mental health team then they are usually
satisfied. However, it should be remembered that hostels
are rarely the most appropriate environment for people
with mental health problems.

Challenges facing the current system

There is currently a waiting list of around 18,000 people for
social housing. Of this number, 7,200 are waiting for single
occupancy housing, for which there is typically a seven-
year wait. Single occupancy housing solutions are suitable
for a large number of people currently using our services
and would enable many people to move on and become
more independent.

In the past six months, there has been an increase in the
number of young people (under 35) with accommodation
issues admitted to acute psychiatric units. Usually, these
issues prolong their stay in hospital due to the additional
time required to find a solution. This is more expensive for
the health economy and can be harmful to an individual’s
recovery.

There are a number of factors influencing this:

1)  Under 35s unable to claim more than single room rate
for housing benefit in private accommodation (see
below)

2)  Street Homeless Prevention Team prevent U25’s into
the hostel system unless absolutely necessary (as it is
rarely the most appropriate solution)

3)  Young Person’s housing services in Southampton
struggle to manage clients with high level of mental
health need

4)  General lack of social housing

Southern Health m

NHS Foundation Trust

The housing benefit reforms have imposed some
challenges on our work to support people with housing
needs. People under 35 can only claim for single room
rates, which currently amounts to just £63.42 /week. In
many cases this is not sufficient to cover the costs of rent
in the city which is preventing many people moving on
from supported accommodation. It also makes it difficult to
find accommodation for people who need to live away
from disruptive environments where they are currently
living. There are exemptions to this rule, for example
people who have spent the last three months in a hostel.
We would argue that people who have been living in
supported accommaodation should be exempt too, as many
of these people are ready to move on to regular
accommodation but could not do so on £63.42 / week.

There is no specific housing provider for people with a
dual-diagnosis (which is more common amongst homeless
people). This could be a combination of mental health
problems, or a mental health problem and substance
misuse problem, for example.

Potential solutions and ‘spend to save’ schemes

Key to improving the current situation is to ensure there
are no blockages in the flow of people through services, so
they can move on from high-cost/more restrictive services
to low-cost/more independent living arrangements as soon
as is appropriate. This is better for the people we serve,
and will be more cost effective in terms of resources across
the whole system. The ultimate aim should always be to
support people to manage their own tenancy and be as
independent as possible.

Making the best use of current resources: This includes
the right training for staff (both in mental health and
housing), as well as ensuring our buildings and services are
being used appropriately.

Increase in availability of single occupancy social housing:
It is more cost-effective to help people move on more
quickly to such housing, with appropriate floating support /
community mental health input as required, compared to
lengthy placements in supported accommodation or
inpatient mental health services.

Closer working with local private landlords: For example
the establishment of a Landlord’s Forum, could prove
beneficial in breaking down stigma towards mental iliness
and providing reassurance about the support available to
landlords if they are struggling with a tenant.



Southern Health m

NHS Foundation Trust

Additional Information (see also separate documents enclosed with this report)

Snapshot of mental health service users currently in
homelessness services (obtained on 10 March 2014)

Patrick House: Currently have 57 residents, four of which
have a mental health care coordinator (this means they are
known to our services and are receiving treatment, and
that they have a care plan in place).

Southampton Street Intensive and resettlement service:
Currently have 26 residents, of which 6 have a mental
health care coordinator.

Snapshot of mental health service users currently in
homelessness services (data for January 2014)

In January, 32% of people using homeless services in
Southampton disclosed that they had a mental health
problem. Of this, 8% said they had a severe and enduring
mental health problem.

Note: these shapshots only give an impression of the
number of people who are known to mental health
services. It does not take into account undiagnosed mental
health problems, or people who are receiving treatment
from substance misuse services who also have a mental
illness (dual diagnosis).

Homeless young people and mental health

We always try to avoid placing a young person (under 25)
in adult homelessness services. This is because the
environment is rarely suitable for younger people. For
example, around 75% of people at Patrick House are heroin
users and there is an increased likelihood that younger
people could be targeted / manipulated by adults in these
environments.

We can evidence at least three cases where Young Person’s
Services have refused to take a client based upon their risk.
However these individuals do not necessarily need support
from a specific mental health supported accommodation
and would benefit more from intensive life skills support
and a more boundaried approach from a young person's
scheme. The outcomes for these three referrals have been

that one ended up having to be accommodated in mental
health supported housing, another ended up being taken
into Patrick House, and the third remains an in-patient.

The service user who remains as an inpatient reported that
the “rejection” of being turned down by the Young Persons
generic housing project had an adverse effect on her
confidence and her mental health, and she has been quite
difficult to manage since then, continuing to self-harm. The
self-harming behaviour is of course not a direct
consequence of the housing situation, but it does mean
that in the eyes of any housing provider, particularly one
that is set up for young people and focussed on recovery
and swift move-on, she is going to be difficult to manage.

Even when a client is deemed as appropriate for the Young
Persons service, there can be delays. A referral form is
submitted, considered by the weekly Young Persons Panel,
then there will be an interview, and more risk assessments
to complete before move-in. A waiting time of around
three weeks seems to be the average — even in cases
where we have identified the placement and completed all
required paperwork within three days of admission to
acute in-patient care. Sometimes it is quicker to move
someone (often inappropriately) into a mental health
scheme as a temporary step-down measure, whilst the
correct service can be accessed.

We have also worked with two clients this past year who
are still being looked after by the Care Leavers service.
Because this service will use any accommodation available
in order to prevent street homelessness, by the time they
have been admitted to hospital, many ‘bridges have been
burned’ after chaotic periods living in B&Bs, hotels, or in
one case a private self-contained flat funded by the care
team, which was entirely inappropriate for a young man of
18 who had not lived independently before.

Housing / homelessness services outside Southampton

Generally, there is less generic housing available in
Hampshire compared to Southampton. In our experience it
is more difficult to house homeless people in Hampshire.



For example, there are no hostels in the whole New
Forest/Totton/Waterside area.

Southampton benefits from the Supporting People
contract and strong networks of support services which are
less developed in Hampshire.

There is also a lack of self-contained supported
accommodation options outside Southampton (e.g. long
term social housing with floating support input).

Anecdotal experiences / case studies from outside
Southampton:

These examples highlight the complexity and highly
individual nature of the support that we aim to provide, in
partnership with other agencies. There is no ‘one size fits
all’ approach and every person requires support that is
tailored to their specific needs:

“I have worked with one young lady with a diagnosis of
emotional instability with risk to self, homeless and alcohol
misuse. | worked with her, the Trinity Centre and housing
services, and she responded well to emotional coping skills
work and psychoeducation, she was then found
accommodation and successfully discharged from the
team.”

“I have assessed a gentleman who was urgently referred
and presenting with hypomanic behaviour, though this
turned out to be drug induced. However further liaison
with housing providers and the police highlighted he was
known to MAPPA (Multi-Agency Public Protection
Arrangements) and they were out of contact with him, the
police were updated and MAPPA team facilitated a
longitudinal assessment of his difficulties. He had a long
history of contacts with forensic services, sporadic
engagement with various mental health services. He was
allocated a care co-ordinator who investigated his history
further, had assessments with consultant psychiatrist, we
were unable to find him housing, but this was due to his
history of risk to other vulnerable adults, inappropriate
behaviours, assaultative behaviours, potential risk to
children and an anti-social behaviour order. He was
discharged from mental health services and his
management was overseen by the MAPPA team. He was
banned from the Trinity Centre due to his behaviour whilst
attending there.”

Southern Health m

NHS Foundation Trust

“I worked with another gentleman who was referred
urgently with psychotic symptoms. | had to work closely
with the Trinity Centre for this, he had been homeless for
many years, and led an itinerant lifestyle. He was
eventually admitted, and agreed to be housed but a
referral to housing panel was turned down due to lack of
local connections, he subsequently left the area. This was, |
have to say, unfortunate as he was an unwell and
vulnerable young man, that services around the country
had struggled to keep in one place long enough to treat.”

“I worked with a young man who had emotional instability,
forensic history and substance misuse. He was unable to
engage on an emotional level and requested discharge as
he found simply talking too overwhelming, however he
was housed, but then lost his accommodation, and was
found further housing via Elderfield. The Trinity Centre
continues to work with him, as do Homer, but he is no
longer open to our services.

“We had another man who had had some contact with the
Trinity Centre and the mental health team, who was
detained and in PICU (psychiatric intensive care) for some
time. He refused any accommodation, and was eventually
discharged homeless, however he changed his mind very
quickly, and was discussed with housing homeless officer
and found accommodation very quickly (within a week)
and provided with bed and breakfast via the Trinity Centre
meanwhile.”

“We supported a couple who were made homeless, via
private landlords. They were placed in bed and breakfast
until accommodation could be found for them, which
happened within three weeks.”

“I have a chap who is currently homeless and vuinerable
following a relationship breakdown. He has autistic traits,
and chronic anxiety / depressive disorder. He was
accommodated on a crash bed at Dene court which was
not appropriate for his mental health and has been
particularly vulnerable from others whilst there. He has
been on crash for nine weeks now whilst we wait for
suitable accommodation to become available. This is
having an impact on his mental health. | have liaised with
housing and the well-being centre are supporting him in
the meantime.”



“There is a lack of placements willing to consider people
who have been evicted for challenging behaviour. It is then
difficult to treat people therapeutically until they are
housed and difficult to get them housed until they are
treated. They also tend to leave the area frequently, | have
had a few who have turned up for assessment but then left
the area.”

“The lack of local connection is a particular issue, |
understand the rationale but was disappointed when the
young, psychotic, itinerant man was turned down, when he
had been in and out of the area for years, and appeared
not to have a local connection anywhere.”

Southern Health m

NHS Foundation Trust

“Together have been very helpful in enabling people to
maintain their tenancy, and understand the rationale of
having to abide by certain rules, manage practical issues
and provide support with budgeting, shopping, etc. We
have done a lot of work with them, and refer a lot of
patients their way, in an attempt to avoid eviction, and as a
way of moving on from supported accommodation. It
would be particularly helpful if they could get involved with
those that are homeless and in need of support. The Trinity
Centre are helpful with this group, but are also bound by
the needs of running the centre. they have a project
running there, which involves co-ordinating care for those
discharged from hospital with no fixed abode, to help find
them accommodation.”

About Southern Health NHS Foundation Trust

Southern Health provides mental health, physical health, learning disability and social care services in Hampshire.
In Southampton we provide mental health services for working age adults as well as older people (including
dementia care). We focus on supporting people in the community and promoting independence and the ability to
live a life beyond illness.

We operate Antelope House, an acute psychiatric hospital in the city centre, as well as community mental health
services and a specialist eating disorder service. We provide some of the city’s substance misuse services. We
also run the Recovery College, which takes an educational approach self-management of mental health problems
and is free for people using our services.

Our focus on recovery and independence extends to supporting people with accommodation problems, in that
we always aim to find solutions that are the least restrictive and enable people to self-manage as much of their
lives as they can.

Our services in Southampton are commissioned (funded) by the Southampton City Clinical Commissioning Group.
For more information about us, please visit our website or get in touch:

www.southernhealth.nhs.uk

communications@southernhealth.nhs.uk
023 8087 4106







*lojeulpiQ-00 Buisnoy Jo wea | juswabeue AJunwiwoD
oy} Bunoejuoo Ag paulelqo SwioH [BUBd UOIEPOWWOI0Y
2/GEE£808 1DOS Wes] Juswissassy isi|eloadg

6£Z1 2808 €20 :oleuIpI0-00 Buisnoy

1ZZ) 2808 £Z0 :wea) juswsbeuepy Aunwiwo)

6.¥€ 2208 £20 1ea4S ucidweyinog oL

L4610 £€08 £20 ®4/Us] yjoog

LZLL 8108 €20 :8SNOH Xoljed

0§€S Z08 £20 ucldwWeynog weyuols

965 £908 £20 :SOWer 1S JO Ajpog

1888 ££08 £20 :PIY SUsWOA Uojdwelyinog

LE1L0 S508 £20 :9snoH AajsBuly Buisnoy | saydey)d
Z0Z1 ZZ08 £20 :uojdwelynos vONA

#5ZZ £808 €20 :DDS 92IApY BulsnoH

8LZE €808 €20 :ODS YU SSBUSSB|BUIOH

£€6. 2208 £20 :anua) Ae( sjules om|

EVET £808 €20 ‘xed

£PET £808 £20 (WES | LUONUSASIJ SSOISLWOH 198115

SY3IgNNN INOH43T31 Ind3sn

'££6.2208¢€20

|21 "anuaay Ainqueid ul
anuan Aeq sjuieg om] dy)
Je pesegq siy} sjeyjioe) diay
0} J9)JOAA UOI}EPO WO DY
8}eAlld E dAeY

anua) Aeq -ejeldoidde

8Q ABW UONEPOWLWODJE
3jeAld *HOLD3S FLVAIN

ABlS WnWIXew syuow

9 'ashoH Y}2uled Jo eaiy
Hoddng aAlsusju| 8y} pue
|eisoy 39a41g uoydweyinog
01 "sua sisoubelp [enp

10 }NOIYIP ‘PaYOLBIUS SloW
a|puey ued sjosfoid asay |
-1H0ddNS IAISNILNI

a|nJ e se Aels

winwixew yuow g ‘poddns
['SS 8Alsusiul yim pabeuew
S}E|)} WeYuolg — aNUAY
|1zuaq pue ‘wdg |gun 18A00
SEY U2Iym 8SNOH Ueplof
‘|isoy 1y ¢ anuaj yjoog
Auuy uoneAles syl — sNd
STUMSIHIT IAISNILNI

Juswabeuep

BuisnoH rgsg 10 wWeyuols o)
Apoa.aip 8q pinom |elieel syl
‘spunoJlbyoeq jo Alaliea B WOl
ajdoad ayey |jIm yoiym sjoaloid
ouausb aWos aney Weyuolsg
pue sawer g jo Aj@100g

‘8)N0l wes |

SS3|BLWOH 834} BIA

ob 0} Jualjo ‘sdajs asay}
Buimol|oy souy “Alliqeliene
|e20| Aue }I J03eUIRIO
-09 Buisnoy yum doayo
‘921ApY Buisnoy 10BjU00
pue ssaussaawoH
0908 0] Jussald
‘sladedsmau/sjuste
Bums| ein

yeas o) Jusip abeinooug

—

!

syuaio aoe|d o} Jnolp ‘ABys JabLo| 1o} |81S0Y BU) JO BBIE BAISUSIUI (Jiuow g) wus) JaBuo) B s 818y "Mo|aq palsl| aney
1 Y21ym A0 8y Ulylim UoISIACId PSIBIDOSSE PUB SUOHdO UO-2A0W SNOLBA SU} OUI ‘9|GISSOd SB LUOOS S ‘U0 BA0W WSy}
d|ay 0} INCABSPUS pUE SY99M  UIUIM [BNPIAIPUI YOES SSOSSE ||IM 818y} JelS "ucidweyinog Ul uoisiaoid sssjawoy
199.)S JO SWJB) U] 21)UsD JUBLISSASSE U} pue ‘Jujod BUILE)S 8Y) MOU ST UDIUM ‘TSNOH MOIYLV d ©) pausjel st jual)

"INO LNOHLIM LNJW3DV1d ¥3AISNOD 1ON
T7IM ‘a3320¥d OL WHO4 SIHL a33N Wv3l
SSITINOH LITHLS "EFEZEBOBELCO Jequnu xey
UO Wes ] UOIJUSASId S$SB|8WOoH 19815 0) Saxe) pue
LUIOY JUBLUSSASSY Spasp dised INo ||y [enpialpul
ajeudoidde/piepy ‘we| L-weg aijua) Aeq sjuleg
om] o} [¥4 Jo Sa3IM ‘NOW uo sjussaud Jusi|)

poddns Jnoypm
UC[IEPOWWOId.e
sleaud salinbai jualn

‘yeys Aq pausjal

aq Jo Juasald jjes

ueD ‘UOIEPOLILLOIDE
ssajpwoy

ousuab o |93soy

e 10} ajeudoidde jusin

‘uonepowwosoe ajeudoidde siow oy Bugiem aie Ayl is|iym ajgesdde aq Aew
wea | SSajaWoH 19a.11S ay) 0} jellaal B Sa0UBISWINDIID S84} SAOJE U} JO Aue Ul Jel)) 8jou ases|d

*10}euipiQ-09 Buisnoy

Ajganosdss.

‘PIV S, USWIOM
uojdweyinog 03 10
(dA) @snoH AejsbBury
‘Buisno}y | 183deyn
10 YOINA 0} J9jal jjes
ueD 10 pauajal jusl)

‘seiadosd uo piq
AjAnoe pue Alessaosu
JI ssausss@woy

0} Juasaid ‘(ajgeoidde
JI pappe aq Aew sjuiod
|eoipaw) Aj@jeIpa Wil
uohenis Jo JOS ULojU|

10 wes | Juswebeuely Alunwwoy
ylim pessnosip aq ueo |sued 10}
AMgENNS "LZZ1Z808EZ0 UO Wea]
juawabeuey Hunwwon el
[sUEd UOIEPOWWOo0Y/Bulpun o}
Jajal [euoissajold ylom [eicos/Ulesy
[B}US LW/I0}eUIPIO-0D BiBn)

Apuspuadapul

anl| pue Aoueus) e
abeuew 0y ajendoldde
S| pue ‘syulod Jusioiyns
sey ‘1s) Buisnoy
(008s) Aoyiny

[e007 uo JuslD

‘spasu
Yiesy [ejusu sy
10} poddns Bujcbuo
Ylim LUoHEPOWLWODE.
pauoddns

yijeay [ejusw oyoads
saunbai JusiD

(aousjoln

onsawop Buieaj}

B2) uonepowwoose
adA) abnjal s,ustluom
10 (Gg Jopun) suosiad
BunoA saJinbal JuallD

"MO[8q umoys sdnoub aAl) JO SUO OJU| ||B} [|IM UOIJEPOWWOIOE
1o} ainpaooud |elsajal 081100 Jusned-ul [eydsoy 4N SIueiD

LHVHOMOTH TV 343d SS3TINOH NOLdINVHLNOS







Southern Health 753

NHS Foundation Trust

Housing Options In
Southampton

Southern Health m

NHS Foundation Trust

A presentation by Sean Smith, Housing Co-Ordinator, Acute Care
Support Team

D A training presentation to give professionals a
guide to what accommodation is available in
the City, and how to access it

November 2013




Southern Health !L'IEE

NHS Foundation Trust

My role as Housing Co-
Ordinator

2 Specialist housing worker for Southern Health
Trust

2 Available as a resource for complex housing
issues

2 Involved in reducing the number of delayed
transfers of care where accommodation is an
issue .

Southern Health m

NHS Foundation Trust

What this training aims to
achieve

2 To show what supported accommodation is available to
Mental Health Service Users, and how it is accessed

2 To explain the Homelessness Pathway for any homeless
individuals in the City and how to access services

2 To give a detailed look at the Southampton City Council
Homebid register and how the Specialist Assessment Team
work

2 To answer any questions professionals may have relating to
how they can help resolve the housing issues of their service
users g




Southern Health m

NHS Foundation Trust

Accommodation List

S Handout provided separately

© Shows all accommodation with a brief
description of each, number of beds and
support set-up

O All properties on the list are accessed via the
Mental Health Accommodation Panel

Southern Health m

NHS Foundation Trust

Aims of Supported
Accommodation

2 To help support service users in a stable community environment to move towards
more independent accommodation

To provide support around a variety of different areas, including managing mental
health, budgeting, social integration, cooking, shopping and accessing services

Must be based upon client need. Always look at the least restrictive option

Must be a clear move-on plan in place for any referral to ANY supported housing — even
the longer term schemes. Even if the move on is not realistic at the time of referral.
Any referral needs to be backed up by a thorough and comprehensive referral forms.
No point leaving anything out! Always give worst outcomes and risk information —it
helps the providers to formulate their own risk plans

Clients must be referred by a Community Treatment Team, AAT, ACT, EIP, TQ21 or
Homeless Healthcare professional

Out of area referrals will be considered but only in extreme circumstances such as MQJd=

clients or those that cannot live elsewhere for a valid reason. Same principles as8C
housing o

©

(4 LIV ]

4

i




Southern Health m

NHS Foundation Trust

Natalie House

2 Stonham-run 24hr registered care home for mental
health service users

2 Commissioned by Southampton City Council &
Southern Health

2 Southampton-only resource
2 Aim to move clients on within 1 year
2 Move-on extremely important

2 Any dual diagnosis clients must be engaged with
appropriate substance misuse services to address
issues :

Southern Health [\/zE3

NHS Foundation Trust

Homeless Flowchart

2 Handout supplied separately

2 Explains pathway through services for homeless
service users or indeed anyone needing to access
generic services in the City

2 All homelessness services are provided, like the
Mental Health schemes, via Supporting People.
Homeless services are accessed via Street
Homeless Team and guidelines are very strict._




Southern Health m

NHS Foundation Trust

Street Homeless Prevention Team

©

V]

In place within Supporting People structure to gatekeep referrals into
homelessness services

Will establish “Local Connection” and eligibility to access SP homeless
resources

Can help divert people and relocate to appropriate area where no Local
Connection is established in Southampton

SHPT will carry out an assessment to assess the need and vulnerability and
make appropriate referrals to supported accommodation or to the private
rented worker. This is done at 3 hostel referral sessions held at the Two Saints
Day Centre at 30 Cranbury Avenue on Monday Wednesday and Friday from
09.30am to 11lam.

As part of the SP cantract anyone being evicted for SP generic supported
accommodation will inform SHPT of clients who are at risk of becoming
homeless. SHPT will then mediate and look at solutions and alternative .
accommaodation. _ g

Southern Health m

NHS Foundation Trust

SHPT conduct 2 early morning out reach sessions to find street homeless people and signpost to services
SHPT will carry a case load of street homeless clients and those at risk of losing accommodation.

HMP prisans and hospital discharge team will make referral to SHPT to clients leaving hospital and prison
who will be NFA on release

SHPT attend MAPBA meetings and multi agency meanings for complete and challenged clients

SHPT work with EU welcome see migrant workers who are homeless at the Two Saints Day centre on a
Tuesday from 10 am to 12 am

SHPT has a part time worker who works long term with entrenched homeless clients to support them in
independent accommaodation.

SHPT work closely with UKBA with dealing with immigration offenders and supporting the process of
removal




Southern Health E!ZIE

NHS Foundation Trust

Hostel Accommodation and
Considerations

2

o

©

o

Patrick House and the other hostels are potentially very challenging
environments for mental health clients. They provide robust 24hr support
but feature a mixture of service users with a number of social problems

SHPT will try and avoid wherever necessary placing under 25’s into hostels
due to vulnerability and the fact we have an existing age-appropriate
Young Persons service

Support in hostels not necessarily geared towards Mental Health so
providers will need to feel adequately supported when a referral is made.
Information sharing where necessary, good follow up and crisis plans are
key

Remember that all hostels are commissioned to help move people on and
that is their ultimate aim. They are not long-term services nor will move-
on be neglected — it will be part of each individual support plan

Southern Health m

NHS Foundation Trust

Young Persons Services

(L

o

[

©

For young people under the age of 25
Two main projects — YMCA and Kingsley House

Project house difficult clients from variety of backgrounds and emotive situations
— care leavers, young offenders, “runaways”

Engagement is extremely important. All young pecple need to engage with
keyworker sessions and aim of stay is focused on move on

YP services can provide tenancy training, initiate engagement with agencies like
No Limits and City Limits, get young pecple involved in vocational opportunities,
education, volunteering, accessing support

Environment in schemes can be “lively” — as there are lots of young people living
in close proximity

Projects will take Mental Health service users but adequate support and follow-up
and joint working between services is key

Young Persons Panel sit every week on a Thursday. Paperwork can be obtaineddsy
contacting projects directly. The young person can also self-refer




Southampton City Council Housing
This section compiled with help from

Specialist Assessment Team
Housing Allocations

SOLTHAMPTON
CITY COUNCHE

¢ Social housing — the reality

¢ The Lettings Policy

¢ Priority housing — the process

® No priority decisions and further reviews

* What priority?

¢ What is urgent?

* Exception to Policy

* Housing options - the alternatives

® Qlder person’s accommodation — 50+, 60+ and extra-care




The reality:

® 18 000 The number of people currently waiting for social housing

e 7200 waiting for 1 bed property (40%)
Last year 446 1 bed properties were advertised (6%)
5 to 7 year wait for a one bed property

2 to 4 year wait for 2 bed flat/maisonette or up to 6 for a house
2 to 5 year wait for 3 bed flat/maisonette — up to 7 for a house
7+ years for a larger flatmaisonette/house

SOLITHAMPTON
CITY COUNCE

The Lettings Policy

Southampton City Councll
Hauslng Selutions

* All decisions are made in line with Lettings Policy
the information provided in this AprH 2009
policy

* A copy can be found on the council
website:
www.southampton.gov.uk/living/housina/housingpolicies

SOUTHAMPTON
CITY COUNCIL




The process:

* HS1 (housing/transfer application form) — section 8

* Additional Priority form

* Further information required?
HS4(health and support need assessment form)
contact: doctor/specialist/other professionals

* Home visit

® ‘Call-in’ —interview at Civic Centre

Applicants will not normally be given reasonable preference on
medical /welfare grounds for the following conditions:

. . 3 . .
‘No priority’ decisions
Alcohol abuse

Bedwetting (enuresis)

Damp property/No central heating

Diabetes without complications

Drug abuse

Dyslexia

Depression caused solely by living conditions
Epilepsy controllable with medication
Gastric/duodenal ulcers

Glandular fever

Glue ear/grommets/middle ear infections
Growing pains

Harassment/Neighbour difficulties

Decision will not be reviewed
unless there is a significant
change in the applicant’s
circumstances, since the original
assessment, which causes their

> k A Hay fever

_housgg to hat;e.a r?lthlrfll;Fanltf Hernia/Haemorrhoids

Impact upen their health/weltare Obesity/overweight
Pregnancy

Recurrent upper respiratory problems (coughs/celds) and Bronchitis
Sexually transmitted infection except AIDS

Single parenthood

Skin problems.

Temporary illness e.q. recovering from surgery

Temporary orthopaedic difficulties eg. broken limb

Varicose veins

® s s s 8 8 s 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 s s 2w s e

All cases will be referred to the Sp list A t Team for their

consideration.




PR T os s e e 5 O NP |
What priority?

Requirement :
Main points:
*  Assessed medical/welfare/social need to move 30
¢ Living in at least 1 of the defined unsatisfactory housing conditions 30
*  Homeless 30

Additional points:

Applicants with a proven link to Southampton 30

Applicants with insufficient financial resources to meet their own housing needs 30
Existing city council tenants 25

Second household member with medical/welfare need to move 5

Living in 2 or more of the defined unsatisfactory housing conditions 5

* o s s @

Exceptional points:

*Under occupying city council tenants 200

Management transfers (4 month pericd only) SCC tenants 150

Short-term points (4 month period only) (e.g. urgent medical/welfare grounds, homeless in temporary
accommodation) 100

People with assessed social need fo move to a particular area where otherwise hardship would result 30
*  Waiting time - points per month 1

What is Urgent?

®* 100 points
®* Exceptional circumstances

* Case discussed with and agreed by the District Medical Officer
(independent medical adviser)

SOLTHAMPTON
CITY COUNCH




—

Exception to policy

Applicants requesting an extra bedroom on medical grounds

Only granted if evidence proves that this is needed for:

® 24 hour care needs - assessed, and funded

* |ack of space for medical equipment storage (not motor scooter)*
* partner requires breathing apparatus at night*

* younger sibling in danger if sharing a room*

*Discretion only. NB Bedroom tax would apply in these cases.

SOUTHAMPTON
CIT¥ COUNCIL

Direct Lets

* Adapted property/mobility flats
* Require OT report
* Work with the housing OT to find the best match

SOUTH ON
CiTY COUNCIL




Housing Options — the alternatives:

® Overcrowding — ways of alleviating the situation:
partitions
changing rooms
moving furniture

® Private renting
Shared ownership
Sheltered housing

SOUTHAMPTON
CIEY COUNCIL

| RO ERMAS SR U DM RSB o e
Sheltered Accommodation

® Sheltered Accommodation in Southampton is split
into three categories:

o Housing for the over 50 ‘s
o 60 Plus

o Extra Care

SOLTHAMPTON
CITY COUNCIL




Housing for the over 50°’s

¢ Accommodation is for residents who are over the age of 50

® No scheme based warden but floating support is available only
for those over 60

* Pull cords in every flat
®* No communal rooms

® There are also a number of 55+ schemes. These are mainly
Housing Association schemes.

SOLTHAMPTON
CITY COLNCIL

60 Plus Accommodation

* Accommodation for those over the age of 60

* Broken down into Scheme based support and
floating support.

® Pull cords available
®* Communal areas

* Some have facilities such as guest rooms and
laundry

SOUTHAMPTON
LTy COUNCIL




Extra Care

* Extra Care is accommodation for those over the age of
60 who wish to live independently whilst having
access to a range of facilities.

* Some schemes have guest rooms, hairdressers and
restaurants.

* Care agency based in the schemes and sleep-in staff
for emergencies.

® Cannot cater for night time needs at present.

SOUTHAMPTON
CITY COUNCIL




	Agenda
	6 Minutes of the Previous Meeting (including matters arising)
	7 Inquiry Meeting 2: INQUIRY MEETING 2 - ACCOMMODATION AND SUPPORT SERVICES THROUGH THE VOLUNTARY SECTOR AND ACCESS TO AND DISCHARGE FROM HEALTH SERVICES
	APPX 1 INQUIRY PROGRAMME V3 March 14
	APPX 2 SSJ Report for the Homelessness Health Inquiry - March 2014 v2
	APPX 3 2 saints Health Summary
	APPX 4 No limits
	Appendix 5
	APPX 6 homeless healthcare team services
	APPX 7 Substance misuse Health Inquiry1
	Appendix 8


